
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

   
  

please ask for Martha Clampitt 
direct line 0300 300 4032 

date 16 February 2011 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & HOUSING OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 

Date & Time 
Monday, 28 February 2011 10.00 a.m. 

 
Venue at 

Room 15, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford 
 
 

 
Richard Carr 
Chief Executive 

 
To:     The Chairman and Members of the SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & HOUSING OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
 

Cllrs Miss A Sparrow (Chairman), A M Turner (Vice-Chairman), Mrs J Freeman, 
P Freeman, Mrs R B Gammons, Mrs S A Goodchild, Ms A M W Graham, J Kane and 
P Rawcliffe 
 

 
[Named Substitutes: 
 
R A Baker, Dr R Egan, Mrs D B Gurney, P Hollick and B J Spurr] 

 
 

All other Members of the Council - on request 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS 
MEETING 

 



 
AGENDA 

 
 
1. Apologies for Absence 
  

Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members 
 

2. Minutes 
  

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Social Care 
Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 24 January 
2011 and note actions taken since that meeting. 

(attached) 
 

3. Members' Interests 
  

To receive from Members any declarations and the nature thereof in relation 
to:- 
 
(a) personal interests in any agenda item 
 
(b) personal and prejudicial interests in any agenda item 
 
(c) any political whip in relation to any agenda item. 
 
 

4. Chairman's Announcements and Communications 
  

To receive any announcements from the Chairman and any matters of 
communication. 
 

5. Petitions 
  

To receive petitions from members of the public in accordance with the Public 
Participation Procedure as set out in Annex 2 of Part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

6. Questions, Statements or Deputations 
  

To receive any questions, statements or deputations from members of the 
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in 
Annex 1 of part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

7. Call-In 
  

To consider any decision of the Executive referred to this Committee for 
review  in accordance with Procedure Rule 10.10 of Part D2.   
 



8. Requested Items 
  

To consider any items referred to the Committee at the request of a Member 
under Procedure Rule 3.1 of Part D2 of the Constitution. 
 

 Reports  

Item Subject Page Nos. 
9 Portfolio Holders' Update 

 
To receive verbal updates from the Portfolio Holder for 
Social Care and Health and the Portfolio Holder for 
Housing. 
 

  

10 LINk Update 
 
To receive an update from Bedfordshire LINk on local 
health matters influencing LINk activity as defined by the 
Health and Social Care Act 2001. 
 

  

11 Diabetes Care in Central Bedfordshire 
 
To receive a report outlining Diabetes Care in the region. 
 

To Follow   

12 Continuing Health Care 
 
To receive a report describing NHS Bedfordshire’s 
responsibility for NHS Continuing Healthcare in the 
Central Bedfordshire locality.  The Committee will also 
be informed of Community Health Care in the region. 
 

*  17 - 42 

13 Update on the Revised Fair Access to Care Services 
Eligibility Criteria for Adult Social Care 
 
To receive an update report from the 4 February 2010 
meeting detailing the Council’s approach to the 
framework for setting the eligibility criteria for Adult 
Social Care. 
 

*  43 - 48 

14 Work Programme 2010 - 2011 & Executive Forward 
Plan 
 
To receive and consider the Social Care Health and 
Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee draft work 
programme for 2010 – 2011 and the Executive Forward 
Plan for the period 1 January 2011 to 31 December 
2011. 
 
 
 
 

*  49 - 76 



 
15 Date of Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the committee will be held on 28 
March 2011 in Room 15 at Priory House starting at 
10.00am. 
 

   

 



CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

At a meeting of the SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & HOUSING OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held in Room 15, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford on 
Monday, 24 January 2011 

 
PRESENT 

 
Cllr Miss A Sparrow (Chairman) 
Cllr A M Turner (Vice-Chairman) 

 
 

Cllrs Mrs R B Gammons 
Mrs S A Goodchild 
Ms A M W Graham 
 

Cllrs J Kane 
P Rawcliffe 
 

 

Apologies for Absence: Cllrs Mrs J Freeman 
P Freeman 
 

 

Substitutes: Cllr B J Spurr (In place of Cllr Mrs J Freeman) 
 

 

Members in Attendance: Cllrs R A Baker 
D Bowater 
Mrs R J Drinkwater 
Dr R Egan 
Mrs C Hegley 
M R Jones, 
   
 

 

Officers in Attendance: Mrs M Clampitt – Committee Services Officer 
 Mr H Khan – Head of Housing Needs 
 Ms J Mew – Policy & Performance 

Manager 
 Mr N Murley – Assistant Director Business & 

Performance 
 Mrs J Ogley – Director of Social Care, 

Health and Housing 
 Miss C Powell – Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

 
Others in Attendance Mr M Coleman – Chairman, Bedfordshire LINk 
 Mr D Levitt – Head of Public Engagement 

and Communications, NHS 
Bedfordshire 

 Mr T Medwell – Head of Primary Care 
Commissioning, NHS 
Bedfordshire 

 Mr M Thompson – Interim Lead for Primary 
Care, NHS Bedfordshire 

 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 5



SCHOSC 
-  

24.01.11 
Page 2  

 

 

SCHH/09/222 
  

Minutes  
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the minutes of the meeting of the Social Care, Health and Housing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 20 December 2010 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 

 
SCHH/09/223 

  
Members' Interests  
 
(a) Personal Interests:- 

 
 Cllr Mrs S Goodchild                     She is an ongoing service user. 

 
(b) Personal and Prejudicial Interests:- 

 
 There were no declarations made. 

 
(c) Any Political Whip in relation to items on the agenda:- 

 
 There were no declarations made. 

 
 
 
 

SCHH/09/224 
  

Chairman's Announcements and Communications  
 
The Chairman had 2 announcements as follows:- 
 

1) Item 22 – St Neots Road was exempt from publication at the time the 
agenda was published to the Central Bedfordshire Council website.  
However at today’s date the information was in the public domain and 
could be dealt with in public. 

 
2) Under the provisions of committee procedure rule CM16 the order of the 

agenda would be varied as follows:- 
 

Item 10 – LINk Update 
Item 13 – Health White Paper “Equity and Excellence” 
Item 11 – Health White Paper “Equity and Excellence” Implications of 

     LINk to Healthwatch 
Item 12 – Community Dental Services 
Item 22 – St Neots Road (no longer exempt) 
 
Items 14 – 21 remain unchanged. 
 

 

Agenda Item 2
Page 6



SCHOSC 
-  

24.01.11 
Page 3  

 

 

SCHH/09/225 
  

Petitions  
 
The Chairman announced in accordance with Section 6, Part A4, Paragraph 
6.1.1  that Mr Francis present the Committee with a petition in connection with  
the proposals of the care arrangements at St. George’s Court, Leighton 
Buzzard.  Mr Francis spoke of his, the residents and their carers frustration 
over the lack of information provided to date for possible changes to the care 
arrangements. 
 
The Director of Social Care Health and Housing provided Mr. Francis with the 
assurance that the Council will take note of the petition and the representation 
at this meeting.  The Director also confirmed officers will be available to discuss 
the proposals at St. George’s Court at a date to be agreed.  Correspondence to 
all residents has been drafted and will be sent to all those affected by the 
proposals.   
 
The Director reiterated the point that no decision has been or will be made until 
the Executive meeting to be held on February 15 2011.   
 
AGREED 
 
that the petition be forwarded to the Executive for consideration at their 
meeting to be held on Tuesday 15 February 2011, to allow their decision 
to be taken in light of this petition. 
 
 

SCHH/09/226 
  

Questions, Statements or Deputations  
 
The Chairman announced that no questions, statements or deputations had 
been received. 
 

 
SCHH/09/227 

  
Call-In  
 
The Chairman announced that no call-ins had been referred to this Committee. 
 

 
SCHH/09/228 

  
Requested Items  
 
The Chairman confirmed that no requests for agenda items had been received. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 7



SCHOSC 
-  

24.01.11 
Page 4  

 

 

SCHH/09/229 
  

Portfolio Holders' Update  
 
The Chairman requested an update from each Portfolio Holder in attendance 
be provided to the Committee. 
 
Cllr Mrs Carole Hegley, Portfolio Holder for Social Care and Health informed 
the Committee that she and the Assistant Director Business & Performance 
had attended the Customer and Shared Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting to answer concerns about the base budget. 
   
Members were thanked for their attendance at the Adult Social Care Law and 
Children’s Safeguarding sessions which were held in the Chamber the previous 
week.  The guest speaker was the Lead Member from Leicestershire Council 
who spoke of the Pilkington case and the lessons the Council could learn as a 
result of such a tragic incident. 
 
Cllr Mrs Rita Drinkwater, Portfolio Holder for Housing informed the Committee 
that 16 long term empty homes had been brought back into use.  In addition 
the Government was to reward Council for each long term empty home brought 
back into use.  The reward was £1400 per home.  Members asked that Ward 
Members be informed of any empty homes which are brought back into use 
within their area.  It was agreed that Officers would look into supplying the 
information. 
 
The Portfolio Holder Housing would be attending a Conference in London on 
25 February which would deal with the Homelessness Challenge. 
 
 

SCHH/09/230 
  

LINk Update  
 
Mr Coleman provided his comments in association with the Health White Paper 
“Equity and Excellence” Implications of LINk to Healthwatch (please refer to 
Minute No. SCHH/09/232). 
 

 
SCHH/09/231 

  
Health White Paper "Equity and Excellence"  
 
The Committee received and considered the report which provided an overview 
of the potential changes to the NHS and associated impact for Central 
Bedfordshire’s residents.  It was noted that the White Paper had been 
published in July 2010 and the consultation concluded on 11 October 2010.  
On 15 December 2010 the Government set out the responses to the 
consultation. 
 
The Director of Social Care Health and Housing informed the Committee how 
the Government planned to bring about the changes contained within the White 
Paper and the impact these changes would have on Central Bedfordshire 
Council directly. 

Agenda Item 2
Page 8



SCHOSC 
-  

24.01.11 
Page 5  

 

 

 
There are 3 main area of change: to commissioning by moving from PCTs and 
Strategic Health Authorities to the National NHS Commissioning Board and GP 
Consortia.  Transferring some of the public health responsibilities to local 
councils and creating a national public health service enhancing the role of 
councils through establishing Health Well Being Boards. 
  
“No decision about me without me” is set to empower and liberate the Health 
Care process by putting the patient and clinicians at the centre of the service.  
Some of the decision making responsibilities will be transferred from the NHS 
to GP Consortia.  The proposed GP Consortia in Bedfordshire will cover 
Central Bedfordshire and Bedford.  There will also be a national NHS 
Commissioning Board. 
 
A presentation was given to the Committee which highlighted the way forward 
for the delivery.  The Director of Social Care Health and Housing provided 
clarification and further information on a number of specific items namely:  
 
The Health and Well Being Boards will have a membership comprising of GP 
Consortia, Councillors, Statutory Directors, Healthwatch, NHS Commissioning 
Board, etc.  The Boards will provide the Council and its partners greater 
influence over commissioning for healthcare and health improvement across 
children’s and adult services. 
 
The NHS confirmed that the process was very challenging and would deliver 
huge savings over the next 4 years.  The NHS was working with the GPs to 
help them manage the risk.  Some smaller units would be placed within larger 
units. 
 
Concerns were expressed by LINk that the size of the Consortias should be 
larger and would Bedfordshire consortia be able to have sufficient funds to 
provide services In response the NHS representative confirmed that that the 
size of Consortias would be as flexible and would be shared across 
Bedfordshire but managed within administrative boundaries. 
 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the proposals made in the White Paper and the wider implications for 
the council and the local NHS be noted. 
 

 
SCHH/09/232 

  
Health White Paper "Equity and Excellence" Implications of LINk to 
Healthwatch  
 
The Chairman of the Bedfordshire LINk informed the Committee that the LINk 
would be changing its name and becoming known as the Healthwatch.   The 
LINk had achieved many things during the last four year and would continue to 
work with Hospitals such as Addenbrookes, the L&D, Kettering and the Lister 
for patient reform.  It was noted that Healthwatch would be looking for funding 
from other sources due to budgetary cutbacks.   

Agenda Item 2
Page 9



SCHOSC 
-  

24.01.11 
Page 6  

 

 

 
RESOLVED 
 
that the report be noted. 
 
 

SCHH/09/233 
  

Community Dental Services  
 
The Committee received and considered a report from NHS Bedfordshire on 
the proposed revisions to be made to the Salaried Dental Services (SDS).  The 
Head of Primary Care Commissioning for NHS Bedfordshire informed the 
Committee that the NHS commissioned the SDS for residents in Bedfordshire 
and Luton.   
 
The current budget spend was £7m per 100,000 people in receipt of dental 
services which was higher than the National average and third highest in the 
East of England.    
 
The SDS applied for Social Enterprise status and NHS guidance stated that a 
reasonable distance to travel for treatment was 12 miles.  It was noted that the 
SDS services were to be used for patients who required special treatments 
such as periodontics, children and adults who would not be able to cope with a 
normal surgeries and require more time for treatments and the disabled and 
specialist care, ancillary service and the homeless.  It was noted that the 
service had not been commissioned in the traditional way.  In addition there 
were new rules for DDA compliance including infection control.   
 
The review had identified that there would be no reduction in the quantum of 
service but efficiencies could be achieved through increased productivity and 
the reduction in the number of bases where the service was offered.  The 
proposals currently being considered were as follows:- 
 
Shefford – Closure of the existing service which was not providing 

specialist services but was operating as a High Street dentist.  
The new medical centre will have a dentistry wing which will 
provide the specialist services. 
 

Dunstable- Closure of the existing site as it is not fit for purpose and 
cannot comply with new DDA requirements.  Marsh Farm in 
Houghton Regis had been closed to bring it up to code and 
would be reopening. 
 

Ampthill- Closure of the existing site as it is not fit for purpose and refer 
patients to the Flitwick service. 
 

Biggleswade - Closure of the existing service and refer patients to Sandy. 
 

Leighton 
Buzzard- 

Closure the existing site and refer patients to Houghton 
Regis. 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 10



SCHOSC 
-  

24.01.11 
Page 7  

 

 

 
 These proposals would reduce the sites from 14 to 8  serving 

5,500 patients.   
 

 
It was noted that since December 2010 the NHS had been conducting face to 
face interviews with users to ascertain their use of the service and how they 
travelled to the service.  The Committee asked that the ward members be kept 
informed of the number of people within the various areas would be affected 
and of what would be happening during the consultation process. 
 
Members particularly challenge the proposal in respect of Leighton Buzzard 
where there is a population of 37,000 and including surrounding villages, 
50,000. 
 
It was noted that an update would be provided to the Committee in June 2011 
and the proposals to the service changes would be consulted on in September 
2011. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
1) that the report of the NHS be noted. 
 
2) that the NHS be asked to review the proposed closure of the 

Leighton Buzzard Dental Surgery. 
 

 
SCHH/09/234 

  
St Neots Road  
 
The Committee received and considered a report which clarified the plans for 
the St Neots Road Medical Centre.  The Head of Primary Care Commissioning 
for NHS Bedfordshire informed the Committee that in September 2010 the 
practice managing company, Chilvers McCrea had requested to end their 
contract.  In addition, it was noted that the lease on the property was not 
renewable.  It was also noted that in March 2011, Dr Giblin would be retiring 
from the practice. 
 
At the time a number of permanent solutions were being considered the NHS 
carried out a health and safety inspection of the St Neots Road premises and 
were advised that the building was not suitable to remain a GP premises. 
 
The NHS had spoken to neighbouring practices and they were happy to take 
on the additional patients.  One practice had taken on an additional doctor to 
help with the increased number of patients.  Residents had received letters and 
the NHS were holding two drop in sessions for the residents to inform them of 
the proposals. 
 
 
RESOLVED 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 11



SCHOSC 
-  

24.01.11 
Page 8  

 

 

1. that the report be noted  
 
2. that the Committee receive a report at their June meeting which 

covers the current patient (demographic) profile. 
 

 
SCHH/09/235 

  
A Vision for Adult Social Care and Transparency in outcomes: a 
framework for Adult Social Care  
 
The Committee agreed to defer the consideration of this item to the 28 March 
2011 meeting. 
 

 
SCHH/09/236 

  
Review of the Eligibility Criteria  
 
The Committee agreed to defer the consideration of this item to the 28 
February 2011 meeting. 
 

 
SCHH/09/237 

  
Review of Choice Based Lettings and draft Allocations Policy  
 
The Committee received and considered a report which provided Members 
with an update on Choice Based Lettings, the scheme for allocating social 
housing and the opportunity to comment on the Allocations Policy, a 
Framework for determining priorities for social housing. 
 
The Sub Regional Choice Based Lettings Scheme (CBL) worked in partnership 
with Aragon Housing Association, Bedford Borough Council, Luton Borough 
Council and Bedfordshire Pilgrims Housing Association.  The CBL had created 
an Allocations Policy which would be reviewed twelve months after the June 
2009 launch. 
 
The Sub Regional Partnership Board monitors the collective CBL performance 
as well as that of the individual partners.  A benchmarking exercise was being 
undertaken to compare Bedfordshire Home finder with similar sized Sub 
Regional Schemes across England.   
 
The Committee were informed that there were currently 10,419 people 
registered for social housing across the partnership.  The participation rate is 
55% with average bids of 6,685 per month.  In addition, it was noted that cross 
board allocations would fluctuate during the year but evened out by the end of 
the year. 
 
The Policy and Performance Manager provided a demonstration of the 
Bedfordshire Home finder software which provided tenants with information 
about properties which were available for rent and allowed the tenants the 
opportunity to place bids on three properties in any cycle.  It was explained that 
a cycle lasted for one week and occurred every two weeks. 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 12



SCHOSC 
-  

24.01.11 
Page 9  

 

 

Members noted that this service provided flexibility as it included Registered 
Social Landlords.  Members were provided with an explanation of the bidding 
system.  It was explained that the higher the band number (1 being the highest) 
the applicant would be given first refusal of the property.  There is a registration 
team who place people into the correct band having taken into consideration 
their social, medical or housing need.  In response to a question it was noted 
that Bedford Court and Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard were used for 
homeless arrangements. 
 
The Committee considered the request of the CBL to improve the current 
software to include a Village sustainability function at a cost of £20k.  The cost 
would have to be found as it was not part of the existing base budget for CBL.  
It was acknowledged that whilst a desirable function to have, it was not a 
required function..  The Committee agreed with Officers that this was not a high 
priority at the present time. 
 
The Committee congratulated the Housing Team for their good work and 
endorsed the system. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
1. that the contents of the report be noted for information. 
 
2. that the Social Care Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee support the changes to the Allocations Policy. 
 
3. that the £20,000 software enhancement for “village sustainability” 

not be acquired at this time. 
 
RECOMMENDED to the Executive 
 
4. that the Executive endorse the Allocations Policy. 

 
 

SCHH/09/238 
  

Statutory Review of Fees and Charges and Revenue Income Optimisation 
Business Cases  
 
The Committee considered the report which outlined the proposed Fees and 
Charges to be applied for the municipal year 2011/12.  
  
Members discussed the Council’s approach to the application of Fees and 
Charges to the Directorates.  Members expressed concerns about the truly 
vulnerable and affordability particularly in the context of Telecare. 
 
Members stated the need for the Council to ensure that the assumptions made 
against income generation when applying a charge for the Telecare Service 
adhered to accuracy and were the Council’s best estimate, particularly for the 
Council’s truly vulnerable customers. 
 
The Committee endorsed the need to apply a charge for the Telecare Service 
but felt that any charges for installation should be waived. 

Agenda Item 2
Page 13



SCHOSC 
-  

24.01.11 
Page 10  

 

 

 
RECOMMENDED to the Executive 
 
that all proposals be endorsed. 

 
SCHH/09/239 

  
Capital Programme Review 2011/12 to 2014/15  
 
The Committee considered the report of the 11 January 2011 Executive which 
set out the proposed Capital Programme for 2011/12. 
 
Members discussed the proposals contained within the Capital Programme, in 
particular: 
 
a. Disabled Facility Grants  
b. Renewal Assistance 
c. NHS Campus Closure 
d. Timberlands & Chiltern View Gypsy and Traveller Sites 
e. Empty Homes 
f. Schemes under the Housing Revenue Account 

 
RECOMMENDED to the Executive 
 
that all proposals be endorsed. 
 
 

SCHH/09/240 
  

Work Programme 2010 - 2011 & Executive Forward Plan  
 
Members considered the Committee’s work programme and noted that the 
following items would be moved within the programme following deferment 
today:- 
 
1) A Vision for Adult Social Care and Transparency in outcomes: a 

framework for Adult Social Care would be considered at the 28 March 
2011 meeting. 

 
2) Review of the Eligibility Criteria would be considered at the 28 February 

2011 meeting. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer agreed to provide an updated work 
programme to Members. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the work programme as amended above be noted. 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 14



SCHOSC 
-  

24.01.11 
Page 11  

 

 

SCHH/09/241 
  

Date of Next Meeting  
 
The next meeting of the Social Care, Health and Housing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee will be held on Monday 28 February 2011 in Room 15 at 
Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford starting at 10.00am. 
 

 
(Note: The meeting commenced at 10.00 a.m. and concluded at 1.40 p.m.) 
 
 

Chairman …………….………………. 
 

Dated …………………………………. 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



1 NHSB.Central OSC.rep Feb2011

Continuing Healthcare Updated for Social Care,
Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Report by: NHS Bedfordshire

To: Social Care, Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Subject: Continuing Healthcare Progress and Performance Update for Central Bedfordshire
Local Authority

1. Executive Summary

This document has been produced by NHS Bedfordshire to provide a briefing on the background to
NHS Continuing Healthcare the current assessment process, activity for Central Bedfordshire and
actions arising from a review undertaken in the East of England funded by the Joint Improvement
Partnership. A copy of the Action plan is attached for information.

2. Recommendation

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider and accept the report.

3. What is Continuing Healthcare

The National Framework for Continuing Healthcare 2009 guidance sets out the following
definitions: ‘Continuing care’ means care provided over an extended period of time for a
person aged 18 or over, to meet physical or mental health needs that have arisen as a
result of disability, accident or illness.

‘NHS continuing healthcare’ means a package of continuing care that is arranged and
funded solely by the NHS. An individual who needs continuing care may require services
from NHS bodies and/or from Local Authorities (LAs). Both NHS bodies and LAs, therefore
have a responsibility to ensure that the assessment of eligibility for continuing care and its
provision take place in a timely and consistent manner.

If a person does not qualify for NHS continuing healthcare, the NHS may still have a
responsibility to contribute to that person’s health needs – either by directly providing
services or by part funding the package of support. Where a package of support is
provided by both LA and an NHS body, this is known as a ‘joint package’ of continuing
healthcare and should include NHS funded nursing care and other NHS services that are
beyond the powers of a LA to meet. The joint package could involve both the Primary Care
Trust (PCT) and LA contributing to the cost of the care package, or the PCT commissioning
and/or providing part of the package.

Where a person’s primary need is a health need, they are eligible for NHS continuing
healthcare. Deciding whether this is the case involves looking at the totality of the relevant
needs.

Agenda Item 12
Page 17



2 NHSB.Central OSC.rep Feb2011

The following provides a brief understanding of what is defined by a primary health need:

Whether someone has a ‘primary health need’ is assessed by looking at all of their care
needs and relating them to four key indicators:

• Nature – this describes the particular characteristics and type of the individual’s needs
(which can include physical, mental health or psychological needs) and the overall effect of
those needs on the individual, including the type (quality) of interventions required to
manage those needs.

• Intensity – this relates to the extent (quantity) and severity (degree) of the needs and to
the support required to meet them, including the need for sustained/ongoing care
(continuity).

• Complexity – this is about how the individual’s needs present and interact to increase the
skill required to monitor the systems, treat the condition(s) and/or manage care. This may
arise with a single condition, or it could include the presence of multiple conditions or the
interaction between two or more conditions. It may also include situations where an
individual’s response to their own condition has impact on their overall needs, such as
where a physical health need results in the individual developing a mental health need.

• Unpredictability – this describes the degree to which needs fluctuate and thereby create
challenges in managing them. It also relates to the level of risk to the person’s health if
adequate and timely care is not provided. Someone with an unpredictable healthcare need
is likely to have either a fluctuating, unstable or rapidly deteriorating condition.

How decisions are made about who is eligible for NHS continuing healthcare is explained
on page 6 of the Department of Health public information booklet NHS continuing
healthcare and NHS-funded nursing care a copy of which has been provided.

NHS Bedfordshire has been working in partnership with both Local Authority
Representatives to align local systems and processes to ensure compliance with the
requirements of the National Framework for Continuing Health Care and Funded Nursing
Care July 2009 and NHS Continuing Healthcare Practice Guidance March 2010.

4. How are decisions made about who is eligible for NHS continuing healthcare?

The decision making process should be ‘person centred’. This means putting the individual
and their views about their needs and the care and support required at the centre of the
process and ensuring that the individual is involved in the assessment and decision making
process and gets support to do this where needed. The individual may ask a friend or
relative to help them explain their views. It may be appropriate for a Primary Care Trust
(PCT) or other organisation to make the individual aware of advocacy support services who
may be able to assist.

For most individuals the first step in the process will be the Checklist Tool. This is a
screening tool to help health and social care staff work out whether needs might possibly be
of a level or type that might make the individual entitled to NHS continuing healthcare. The
Checklist will usually be completed when someone is assessing or reviewing health or
social care needs. Before applying the checklist the individual or their representative
should be informed that completing the checklist is not an indication of the likelihood that
the individual will necessarily be determined as being eligible for NHS continuing
healthcare.

Agenda Item 12
Page 18



3 NHSB.Central OSC.rep Feb2011

If a completed Checklist suggests that there is a possibility that the individual may be
eligible for NHS continuing healthcare, the individual completing the Checklist should
contact the PCT who will arrange for a multidisciplinary (MDT) team to carry out an up-to-
date assessment of needs. A multidisciplinary team is made up of two or more health and
social care professionals who are involved in the individuals care. The assessment will,
with consent, involve contributions from all of the health and social care professionals
involved in the persons care and collation of information/evidence to provide an overall
picture of needs. In some cases, the multidisciplinary team will ask for more detailed
specialist assessments from these professionals.

The multidisciplinary team will use the information from the assessment to complete a
Decision Support Tool (DST). The Decision Support Tool looks at 11 different types of
need such as mobility, nutrition and behaviour. The purpose of the tool is to help decide
what are the nature, complexity, intensity and unpredictability of the individuals needs and
so whether the primary needs are health needs. The multidisciplinary team will then make
a recommendation to the PCT as to whether the individual is eligible for NHS continuing
healthcare.

If the individual has a rapidly deteriorating condition and requires an urgent package of care
then the Fast Track Tool may be used instead of the Decision Support Tool. If this is the
case, an appropriate clinician will complete the Fast Track Tool and send it directly to the
PCT who will arrange for care to be provided as quickly as possible. Once this has
happened, a PCT may then arrange in some cases for a Decision Support Tool to be
completed after the Fast Track Tool has been used. This could lead to a decision that the
individual is no longer eligible for NHS continuing healthcare funding. In all cases, the
individual or their representative should receive confirmation in writing with regards to a
decision as to whether they are entitled to NHS continuing healthcare.

5. East of England Review

Between February and April 2010 a review of NHS Continuing Healthcare (NHS CHC) was
undertaken in the East of England region. This review, funded by Improvement East, was
carried out through the Joint Improvement Partnership and was supported by both The
Association of Directors of Adult Social Services (ADASS) and NHS East of England. The
aims of the review were to improve adult social care by local authorities working in
partnership with a range of health and social care organisations to transform adult social
care across the region.

KEY ELEMENTS OF THE REVIEW

Overview: Through a process of primary and secondary research to:

Review the processes and practices of referral, assessment and decision-making in
relation to eligibility for NHS Continuing Healthcare of the Primary Care Trusts in the
East of England.
Make clear recommendations arising from the review.

Specifically, to

Identify the underlying reasons why the East of England region has the lowest number
of patients per weighted 10,000 population assessed as eligible for NHS Continuing
Healthcare

Agenda Item 12
Page 19



4 NHSB.Central OSC.rep Feb2011

Identify the reasons behind the variation in the number of patients per weighted 10,000
population assessed as eligible for NHS Continuing Healthcare across PCTs in the East
of England.
Identify patient groups which are under-represented or disadvantaged in terms of being
assessed as eligible for NHS Continuing Healthcare across the region
Identify referral, assessment and decision-making processes and practices which are
contributing to low numbers of patients per weighted 10,000 population being assessed
as eligible for NHS Continuing Healthcare
Identify referral, assessment and decision- making processes and practices which result
in numbers of patients per weighted 10,000 population being assessed as eligible for
NHS Continuing Healthcare being close to the national average for PCTs
Identify the spending levels on NHS Continuing Healthcare across the East of England
Identify if there are any gaps in workforce development across the region (training
needs)
Identify the range of decision making (including fast track) and dispute resolution
processes in use across the region.

Following completion of the review and subsequent report, both PCTs and LAs were
encouraged to take a joint approach to addressing the recommendations from the review.
Joint action plans to address recommendations have been developed and as the East of
England Strategic Health Authority has a governance role in relation to NHS CHC across
the region it will be supporting and monitoring the implementation of the action plans.

6. Activity Data

The data for quarter three in this report is a snapshot as at 31st December 2010. The CHC
database (QA+ system) is populated with ‘live’ client data and as such is liable to change
each quarter when the report is produced.

1) The number of NHS Continuing Care clients in Central Bedfordshire, as a total
and number per 10,000 population

a) The breakdown in relation in relation to Learning Disabilities/Physical
Disability/Dementia and other health categories/age

Current Continuing Healthcare (CHC) clients Quarter 1 – Quarter 3 2010/11

Activity Breakdown Ethnicity Breakdown

Specialty Bedfordshire
Total

Central
Beds
Total

Population
Rate per
10,000 *

Male Female
Age 65

and
over

Age
under

65
White

Other
Ethnic
Groups

Asian
or

Asian
British

Black or
Black
British

Not
Stated

Q1 All 130 83 3.25 45 38 49 34 69 0 0 0 14

Q2 All 146 97 3.80 51 46 59 38 76 0 0 0 21

ABI 19 13 0.51 8 5 5 8 8 0 0 0 5

Mental Health 26 16 0.63 9 7 10 6 15 0 0 0 1

Commissioned
Beds (Mental
Health)

59 31 1.22 16 15 31 0 22 0 0 0 9

Learning
Disability

7 3 0.12 3 0 0 3 2 0 0 0 1

Physical
Disability

54 36 1.41 13 23 15 21 29 0 0 0 7

Q3

Total 165 99 3.88 49 50 61 38 76 0 0 0 23

* The population rate per 10,000 is based on the 2008 estimated population of 255,000 for Central Bedfordshire

Agenda Item 12
Page 20



5 NHSB.Central OSC.rep Feb2011

There has been a steady increase in the number of clients accessing Continuing
Healthcare over the last three quarters of 2010/11. Compared to quarter one, quarter three
has experienced an increase of 19%.

b) Figures for Fast Track Pathway applications and End of Life applications

2010/11 Fast Track and End of Life applications Quarter 1 – Quarter 3 2010/11

Activity Breakdown Ethnicity Breakdown

Specialty Bedfordshire
Total

Central
Beds
Total

Male Female

Age
65
and
over

Age
under
65

White
Other
Ethnic
Groups

Not
Stated

Fast Track 44 24 10 14 22 2 24 0 0

End of Life 6 4 2 2 2 2 4 0 0Q1

Total 50 28 12 16 24 4 28 0 0

Fast Track 60 40 22 18 32 7 35 0 5

End of Life 3 2 1 1 1 1 2 0 0Q2

Total 63 42 23 19 33 8 37 0 5

Fast Track 56 32 13 19 27 5 30 0 2

End of Life 3 3 2 1 3 0 2 0 1Q3

Total 59 35 15 20 30 5 32 0 3

NHS Bedfordshire has experienced a decrease in the total number of Fast Track
applications received during quarter three compared with quarter two and this has
been mirrored in the Fast Track figures for Central Bedfordshire. The majority of
clients at quarter three are aged 65 and over and are recorded as white ethnicity.

All Fast Track applications during 2010/11 have been approved.

2) The number of Continuing Healthcare (CHC) applications in Central Bedfordshire

Number of Continuing Healthcare (CHC) applications Quarter 1 – Quarter 3 2010/11

Activity Breakdown Ethnicity Breakdown

Bedfordshire
Total

Central
Beds
Total

Male Female

Age
65
and
over

Age
under
65

White
Other
Ethnic
Groups

Not
Stated

Q1 95 68 30 38 60 8 54 1 13

Q2 126 85 39 46 69 16 64 0 21

Q3 127 79 42 37 69 10 66 10 3

The number of Continuing Healthcare applications includes Fast track, General, Mental
Health and Learning Disability. There has been a slight decrease in applications since
quarter two. The ethnicity of new applications for quarter three is predominately white.

Agenda Item 12
Page 21



6 NHSB.Central OSC.rep Feb2011

3) The number of successful Continuing Healthcare (CHC) applications in Central
Bedfordshire

Number of successful CHC applications Quarter 1 – Quarter 3 2010/11

Activity Breakdown Ethnicity Breakdown

Bedfordshire
Total

Central
Beds
Total

Male Female
Age 65
and
over

Age
under
65

White
Other
Ethnic
Groups

Not
Stated

Q1 64 47 20 27 40 7 41 0 6

Q2 72 52 26 26 41 11 46 0 6

Q3 69 46 25 21 41 5 39 0 7

The number of successful Continuing Healthcare applications includes Fast Track,
General, Mental Health and Learning Disability. 58% of applications received have
gone on to be successful in quarter three.

Unsuccessful applications are due to clients not meeting the eligibility criteria. As the
data is captured as a snapshot some applications are currently being processed and
will be carried forward into the next quarter. The ethnicity of successful applicants is
predominantly white.

4) The number of CHC applications leading to appeal by the individual

2010/11 CHC applications leading to an appeal Quarter 1 – Quarter 3 2010/11

Activity Breakdown Appeal Ethnicity Breakdown

Bedfordshire
Total

Central
Beds
Total

Male Female
Age 65

and
over

Age
under

65

Appeal
Succeeded

Part
Success

Original
Decision
Upheld

Decision
Pending White

Other
Ethnic
Groups

Not
Stated

Q1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0

Q2 2 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0

Q3 5 3 1 2 3 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0

In quarter three there are five applicants where the appeal decision is pending. Three of
these clients are in Central Bedfordshire, one male and two female. The appeals above are
restricted to those applications made in 2010/11 which resulted in an appeal. Appeals
made in earlier financial years which continued in 2010/11 or retrospective appeals are not
included.

The reasons for appeal could be:

Financial responsibility – families are seeking redress with regard to payment of
fees for care

Lack of understanding of Continuing Healthcare eligibility criteria systems and
processes

Agenda Item 12
Page 22



7 NHSB.Central OSC.rep Feb2011

a) The number of successful CHC appeals

2010/11 CHC applications leading to a successful appeal Quarter 1 – Quarter 3 2010/11

To date there has been one successful appeal in 2010/11. The three appeals in quarter
three are still decision pending.

NHS Bedfordshire has received one complaint regarding the CHC process during
quarter three 2010/11 which relates to Central Bedfordshire.

5) Benchmarking Analysis

Source: National Funded Care Benchmarking Report. Data for Q3 is provisional.

The above table shows the ranking for NHS Bedfordshire both nationally and regionally
for the number of CHC cases per 10,000 population and for CHC costs per 10,000
population.

For the number of CHC cases per 10,000 population there has been little movement in
ranking from quarter one to quarter two, however within the East of England there has
been no movement and the ranking remains at 13 out of 13 PCTs.

There has been downward movement for CHC costs per 10,000 population both
nationally and regionally.

The benchmarking analysis data is sourced from the National Funded Benchmarking
report managed by NHS North Somerset. NHS North Somerset advise that data
rankings should be for information only and form a starting point to try and understand
how Funded Care is delivered regionally and nationally.

7. Conclusion

NHS Bedfordshire will continue to improve on the CHC service within Bedfordshire
ensuring a consistent and transparent process for all users.

Activity Breakdown Appeal Ethnicity Breakdown

Bedfordshire
Total

Central
Beds
Total

Male Female
Age 65

and
over

Age
under

65

Appeal
Succeeded

Part
Success

Original
Decision
Upheld

Decision
Pending White

Other
Ethnic
Groups

Not
Stated

Q1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Q2 1 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0

Q3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CHC Cases per 10,000 population YTD CHC Costs (£'000) per 10,000 population YTD

National Ranking
(150 PCTs)

East of England Ranking
(13 PCTs)

National Ranking
(150 PCTs)

East of England Ranking
(13 PCTs)

Q1 150 13 136 8

Q2 149 13 145 10

Q3 149 13 143 10

Agenda Item 12
Page 23



P
ag
e
8
of
13

A
C
T
IO
N
P
L
A
N
F
O
L
L
O
W
IN
G

R
E
V
IE
W
O
F
N
H
S
C
O
N
T
IN
U
IN
G
H
E
A
L
T
H
C
A
R
E

IN
T
H
E
E
A
S
T
O
F
E
N
G
L
A
N
D
M
ay
20
10

1.
In
tr
o
d
u
ct
io
n

1.
1

B
et
w
ee
n
F
eb
ru
ar
y
an
d
A
pr
il
20
10
a
re
vi
ew

of
N
H
S
C
on
tin
ui
ng
H
ea
lth
ca
re
(N
H
S
C
H
C
)
w
as
un
de
rt
ak
en
in
th
e
E
as
to
fE
ng
la
nd
re
gi
on
.T
hi
s
re
vi
ew
,

fu
nd
ed
by
Im
pr
ov
em
en
tE
as
t,
w
as
ca
rr
ie
d
ou
tt
hr
ou
gh
th
e
Jo
in
tI
m
pr
ov
em
en
tP
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
an
d
w
as
su
pp
or
te
d
by
bo
th
A
D
A
S
S
an
d
N
H
S
E
as
to
f

E
ng
la
nd
.T
he
fin
di
ng
s
an
d
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
of
th
e
re
vi
ew

ha
ve
be
en
ac
ce
pt
ed
by
th
es
e
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
.T
he
re
vi
ew

fo
cu
se
d
sp
ec
ifi
ca
lly
on
th
e
re
as
on
s

fo
r
th
e
E
as
to
fE
ng
la
nd
R
eg
io
n
co
ns
is
te
nt
ly
re
po
rt
in
g
lo
w
er
nu
m
be
rs
el
ig
ib
le
fo
r
N
H
S
C
H
C
pe
r
10
,0
00
po
pu
la
tio
n
th
an
an
y
ot
he
r
S
H
A
re
gi
on
.

1.
2

T
hi
s
ac
tio
n
pl
an
is
in
tw
o
se
ct
io
ns
:t
he
fir
st
se
ct
io
n
su
m
m
ar
is
es
th
e
co
re
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
w
hi
ch
ap
pl
y
to
al
lP
C
T
ar
ea
s
in
th
e
re
gi
on
;t
he
se
co
nd

se
ct
io
n
co
nt
ai
ns
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
w
hi
ch
ar
e
sp
ec
ifi
c
to
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
,a
lo
ng
w
ith
sp
ac
e
to
ad
d
ot
he
r
re
le
va
nt
ac
tio
ns
to
be
ta
ke
n
lo
ca
lly
.

Y
ou
sh
ou
ld
re
ce
iv
e
th
e
ve
rs
io
n
of
th
e
pl
an
th
at
is
re
le
va
nt
to
yo
ur
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n/
ar
ea
so
if
th
er
e
ar
e
no
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
an
d/
or
ac
tio
n
po
in
ts
al
re
ad
y

pr
ov
id
ed
in
se
ct
io
n
tw
o
th
is
m
ea
ns
th
at
th
e
re
vi
ew

di
d
no
tm
ak
e
se
pa
ra
te
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
sp
ec
ifi
c
to
yo
ur
ar
ea
.H
ow
ev
er
,y
ou
sh
ou
ld
st
ill
us
e
th
is

se
ct
io
n
to
lis
ta
dd
iti
on
al
re
le
va
nt
ac
tio
ns
w
hi
ch
yo
u
be
lie
ve
ar
e
ap
pr
op
ria
te
.

1.
3

P
C
T
s
an
d
LA
s
ar
e
ur
ge
d
to
ta
ke
a
jo
in
ta
pp
ro
ac
h
to
ad
dr
es
si
ng
th
e
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
fr
om

th
is
re
vi
ew

an
d
th
er
ef
or
e
P
C
T
an
d
LA

Le
ad
s
ar
e
as
ke
d
to

do
th
e
fo
llo
w
in
g:

a)
m
ee
ta
s
so
on
as
po
ss
ib
le
to
co
ns
id
er
th
e
ac
tio
n
th
ey
w
ill
ta
ke
lo
ca
lly
to
im
pl
em
en
tt
he
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
fr
om

th
e
re
vi
ew

b)
co
m
pl
et
e
th
e
bl
an
k
bo
xe
s
in
th
e
ta
bl
e
be
lo
w
to
tu
rn
th
e
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
in
to
sp
ec
ifi
c,
ac
hi
ev
ab
le
ac
tio
ns
in
th
ei
r
ar
ea
w
ith
le
ad
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
an
d

ta
rg
et
da
te
s
fo
r
co
m
pl
et
io
n.

c)
ad
d
an
y
ad
di
tio
na
la
ct
io
ns
to
be
ta
ke
n
lo
ca
lly
to
ac
hi
ev
e
a
m
or
e
eq
ui
ta
bl
e
an
d
co
ns
is
te
nt
ap
pl
ic
at
io
n
of
th
e
N
at
io
na
lF
ra
m
ew
or
k.

d)
re
tu
rn
th
e
co
m
pl
et
ed
fo
rm
to
E
m
m
a
G
re
en
fie
ld
by
30

th
Ju
ne
20
10

1.
4

T
he
S
H
A
ha
s
a
go
ve
rn
an
ce
ro
le
in
re
la
tio
n
to
N
H
S
C
H
C
ac
ro
ss
th
e
re
gi
on
an
d
w
ill
be
su
pp
or
tin
g
an
d
m
on
ito
rin
g
th
e
im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n
of
th
is
ac
tio
n
pl
an
.

S
E
C
T
IO
N
O
N
E
:
C
O
R
E
R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S

Agenda Item 12
Page 24



P
ag
e
9
of
13

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n

C
o
m
m
en
ts

A
ct
io
n
to
b
e
ta
ke
n
lo
ca
lly

L
ea
d
O
ff
ic
er

T
ar
g
et
D
at
e
F
o
r

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n

1
P
C
T
’s
sh
ou
ld
re
co
ns
id
er
th
e
sy
st
em
s
th
ey
ha
ve

fo
r
ch
ec
ki
ng
da
ta
qu
al
ity
in
re
la
tio
n
to
N
H
S
C
H
C

an
d
en
ga
ge
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
m
an
ag
em
en
ta
nd
IT

co
lle
ag
ue
s
w
he
re
ne
ce
ss
ar
y.
S
ys
te
m
s
ne
ed
to
be

fle
xi
bl
e
to
ad
d
ne
w
da
ta
fie
ld
s
e.
g.
re
ce
ip
to
f

C
he
ck
lis
ts
.

A
re
vi
ew

an
d
fu
rt
he
r

en
ha
nc
em
en
ts
w
er
e
m
ad
e

to
N
H
S
B
C
H
C
Q
A
da
ta
ba
se

ea
rli
er
th
is
ye
ar
.T
he

ad
di
tio
na
lf
ie
ld
s
ha
ve
be
en

ad
de
d
to
al
lo
w
ca
pt
ur
e
an
d

ex
tr
ac
tio
n
of
re
lia
bl
e
an
d

ro
bu
st
da
ta
to
in
cl
ud
e
et
hn
ic

gr
ou
p
et
c.

In
iti
al
w
or
k
co
m
pl
et
ed

w
hi
ch
al
lo
w
s
ex
tr
ac
tio
n
of

m
or
e
m
ea
ni
ng
fu
lr
ep
or
ts

F
ur
th
er
di
sc
us
si
on
s
w
ith

Q
A
on
fu
rt
he
r

en
ha
nc
em
en
ts
of
th
e

sy
st
em

R
ev
ie
w
pr
oc
es
s
fo
r
re
ce
ip
t

of
ch
ec
kl
is
ts
fr
om

bo
th

he
al
th
an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re
fo
r

pr
oc
es
si
ng
an
d
au
di
tin
g

pu
rp
os
es

Le
ar
ni
ng
to
be

in
de
nt
ifi
ed

an
d
de
liv
er
ed
w
ith
in

ed
uc
at
io
n
tr
ai
ni
ng

pr
og
ra
m
m
e
to
en
su
re

im
pr
ov
em
en
ti
n
qu
al
ity
of

in
fo
rm
at
io
n

A
ud
it
sy
st
em

an
d

pr
oc
es
se
s
to
en
su
re
fit
fo
r

pu
rp
os
e

G
C
ha
pm
an
,

N
H
S
B

J
S
im
ps
on
,

B
ed
fo
rd

B
or
ou
gh

S
M
itc
he
lm
or
e,

C
en
tr
al

B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
.

C
om
pl
et
ed
M
ay

20
10

F
eb
ru
ar
y
20
11

In
pr
og
re
ss

co
m
m
en
ce
d

Ja
nu
ar
y
20
11

2
P
C
T
’s
sh
ou
ld
m
ak
e
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
to
co
lle
ct
da
ta

fr
om

bo
th
po
si
tiv
e
an
d
ne
ga
tiv
e
C
he
ck
lis
ts
an
d

re
co
rd
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
on
so
ur
ce
of
re
fe
rr
al
an
d
cl
ie
nt

gr
ou
p.

D
ev
el
op
sy
st
em

to
en
su
re

co
lle
ct
io
n
of
ne
ga
tiv
e

ch
ec
kl
is
ts
.

M
ee
tin
gs
he
ld
w
ith
pa
rt
ne
r

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
an
d
re
qu
es
t

m
ad
e
fo
r
th
is
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
to

be
re
ce
iv
ed
by
C
H
C

de
pa
rt
m
en
to
n
m
on
th
ly

E
ns
ur
e
th
at
al
lp
ar
tn
er

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
ar
e
se
nd
in
g

co
pi
es
of
co
m
pl
et
ed
C
H
C

ch
ec
kl
is
ts
in
a
tim
el
y

m
an
ne
r

E
st
ab
lis
h
an
d
ag
re
e
a

pr
oc
es
s
fo
r
co
lle
ct
in
g
bo
th

po
si
tiv
e
an
d
ne
ga
tiv
e

ch
ec
kl
is
ts

In
fo
rm
at
io
n
to
be
ca
pt
ur
ed

on
a
ge
og
ra
ph
ic
al
ba
si
s

R
ev
ie
w
Q
A
sy
st
em

to

G
C
ha
pm
an
,

N
H
S
B

Agenda Item 12
Page 25



P
ag
e
10
of
13

ba
si
s
to
al
lo
w
fo
r
qu
al
ity

m
on
ito
rin
g/
au
di
t.

In
fo
rm
at
io
n
cu
rr
en
tly
be
in
g

re
ce
iv
ed
fr
om

ac
ut
e
tr
us
t.

es
ta
bl
is
h
if
ad
di
tio
na
lf
ie
ld
s

ca
n
be
ad
de
d
to
ca
pt
ur
e

so
ur
ce
of
re
fe
rr
al

Id
en
tif
y
IT
su
pp
or
t

A
cu
te
T
ru
st
s
to
en
su
re

in
fo
rm
at
io
n
fo
rw
ar
de
d
to

N
H
S
B

LA
co
lle
ag
ue
s
to
re
vi
ew

in
te
rn
al
pr
oc
es
se
s/
sy
st
em
s

to
en
su
re
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
is

fo
rw
ar
de
d
to
N
H
S
B
on

m
on
th
ly
ba
si
s
to
al
lo
w
fo
r

au
di
tin
g
to
en
su
re

co
ns
is
te
nc
y
an
d
qu
al
ity
of

de
ci
si
on
m
ak
in
g

D
is
ch
ar
ge

T
ea
m

J
S
im
ps
on
,

B
ed
fo
rd

B
or
ou
gh
.

S
M
itc
he
lm
or
e,

C
en
tr
al

B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
.

C
om
pl
et
e
S
ep
t

20
10

F
eb
ru
ar
y
20
11

3
P
C
T
’s
an
d
LA
’s
sh
ou
ld
jo
in
tly
re
vi
ew

th
ei
r

ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
an
d
an
y
ex
is
tin
g
le
ga
cy
/p
oo
le
d

fu
nd
in
g
ag
re
em
en
ts
fo
r
un
de
r-
re
pr
es
en
te
d
pe
op
le

w
ith
LD
,t
o
en
su
re
th
at
N
H
S
C
H
C
is
be
in
g
ap
pl
ie
d

co
rr
ec
tly
.

A
gr
ou
p
le
d
by
N
H
S
B
w
ith

re
pr
es
en
ta
tiv
es
fr
om

LA
’s

ha
s
in
re
ce
nt
m
on
th
s

re
vi
ew
ed
lo
ca
l

sy
st
em
s/
pr
oc
es
se
s
to

en
su
re
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e
w
ith
th
e

N
at
io
na
lF
ra
m
ew
or
k.

T
hi
s
gr
ou
p
w
ill
co
nt
in
ue
to

m
ee
ti
n
th
e
fu
tu
re
in
re
la
tio
n

to
jo
in
tf
un
di
ng

ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
.

C
H
C
le
ad
nu
rs
e
Le
ar
ni
ng

D
is
ab
ili
ty
w
or
ki
ng
cl
os
el
y

E
st
ab
lis
h
te
rm
s
of

re
fe
re
nc
e
fo
r
Jo
in
tF
un
di
ng

G
ro
up
in
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p
w
ith

LA
s,
B
ed
fo
rd
B
or
ou
gh

C
ou
nc
il
an
d
C
en
tr
al

B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
C
ou
nc
il.

C
on
tin
ue
jo
in
tw
or
ki
ng

ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
to
en
su
re
th
e

fa
ci
lit
at
io
n
of
as
se
ss
m
en
t

an
d
fu
nd
in
g
of
el
ig
ib
le
LD

in
di
vi
du
al
s.

E
st
ab
lis
h
re
gu
la
r
Jo
in
t

H
ea
lth
/L
A
F
un
di
ng
G
ro
up

m
ee
tin
gs
.

G
C
ha
pm
an

C
om
pl
et
ed

Ja
nu
ar
y
20
11

C
om
pl
et
ed

Ja
nu
ar
y
20
11

Agenda Item 12
Page 26



P
ag
e
11
of
13

w
ith
LD

C
om
m
is
si
on
er
/L
A

Le
ar
ni
ng
D
is
ab
ili
ty
Le
ad

re
ga
rd
in
g
se
rv
ic
e
pr
ov
is
io
n.

4
P
C
T
’s
an
d
LA
’s
sh
ou
ld
ta
rg
et
‘a
w
ar
en
es
s
ra
is
in
g’

tr
ai
ni
ng
on
ar
ea
s
w
he
re
th
er
e
is
an
id
en
tif
ie
d
la
ck

of
re
fe
rr
al
s
fo
r
co
ns
id
er
at
io
n
of
N
H
S
C
H
C
.T
he
y

sh
ou
ld
th
en
su
pp
or
ts
ta
ff
in
th
os
e
ar
ea
s
to
en
su
re

th
ey
m
ak
e
co
rr
ec
tu
se
of
th
e
C
he
ck
lis
tt
oo
lf
or

sc
re
en
in
g.

T
ra
in
in
g
w
as
pl
ac
ed
on
ho
ld

in
B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
du
rin
g
th
e

re
vi
ew

an
d
up
da
te
of
lo
ca
l

pr
oc
es
se
s.
T
hi
s
ha
s

re
in
st
at
ed
fo
llo
w
in
g
re
vi
ew

of
C
H
C
pr
oc
es
se
s
A
ug
us
t

20
10
.

D
is
cu
ss
io
ns
ar
e
ta
ki
ng

pl
ac
e
w
ith
LA
’s
to
ag
re
e
an
d

im
pl
em
en
tj
oi
nt
tr
ai
ni
ng
to

m
ee
tt
he
ne
ed
s
of
in
di
vi
du
al

st
af
fg
ro
up
s.
C
ur
re
nt
ly

tr
ai
ni
ng
is
de
liv
er
ed
by

N
H
S
B
ac
ro
ss
al
ld
is
ci
pl
in
es

he
al
th
/s
oc
ia
lc
ar
e.

A
gr
ee
lo
ca
lt
ra
in
in
g

pa
ck
ag
e

D
ev
el
op
tr
ai
ni
ng
st
ra
te
gy

D
ev
el
op
tr
ai
ni
ng

pr
og
ra
m
m
e
an
d
de
liv
er
in

pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p

G
C
ha
pm
an
,

N
H
S
B

J
S
im
ps
on
,

B
ed
fo
rd

B
or
ou
gh
.

S
M
itc
he
lm
or
e,

C
en
tr
al

B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire

C
om
pl
et
ed

A
ug
us
t2
01
0

M
ar
ch
20
11

5
P
C
T
’s
sh
ou
ld
gi
ve
st
ra
te
gi
c
an
d
lo
ng
-t
er
m

co
ns
id
er
at
io
n
to
th
e
us
e
an
d
av
ai
la
bi
lit
y
of

re
ha
bi
lit
at
io
n
an
d
as
se
ss
m
en
tf
ac
ili
tie
s
ou
ts
id
e
of

th
e
ac
ut
e
ho
sp
ita
ls
et
tin
g.
T
he
N
H
S
C
H
C
sh
ou
ld

be
co
ns
id
er
ed
at
th
e
m
os
ta
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
po
in
ti
n

ea
ch
in
di
vi
du
al
’s
ca
re
pa
th
w
ay
.

A
B
Ir
ev
ie
w
ta
ki
ng
pl
ac
e
in

co
nj
un
ct
io
n
w
ith
C
H
C
lo
ok
in
g

at
R
eh
ab
ili
ta
tio
n
an
d

A
ss
es
sm
en
t.

E
B
ol
to
n/
L

W
ill
is
,N
H
S
B

M
ar
ch
20
11
(f
irs
t

ar
ea
)

6
E
ac
h
P
C
T
an
d
LA
in
th
e
E
oE

sh
ou
ld
de
ve
lo
p
a

si
m
pl
e
pu
bl
ic
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
st
ra
te
gy
to
en
su
re

ac
cu
ra
te
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
is
re
ad
ily
av
ai
la
bl
e
to

R
ev
ie
w
an
d
de
ve
lo
p
N
H
S
B

C
H
C
w
eb
si
te
.

C
H
C
pu
bl
ic
in
fo
rm
at
io
n

bo
ok
le
ts
m
ad
e
av
ai
la
bl
e
in

ac
ut
e
tr
us
ts
,D
rs
S
ur
ge
rie
s,

LA
pr
em
is
es
.

G
C
ha
pm
an

C
om
pl
et
ed

S
ep
te
m
be
r
20
10

Agenda Item 12
Page 27



P
ag
e
12
of
13

m
em
be
rs
of
th
e
pu
bl
ic
.E
.g
.u
se
of
P
C
T
’s
an
d
LA
’s

w
eb
si
te
s
an
d
di
st
rib
ut
io
n
of
th
e
20
09
D
H
pu
bl
ic

in
fo
rm
at
io
n
le
af
le
t.
C
on
si
de
ra
tio
n
sh
ou
ld
be
gi
ve
n

to
ho
w
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
is
di
ss
em
in
at
ed
to
ha
rd
to

re
ac
h
gr
ou
ps
.

N
H
S
B
C
H
C
w
eb
pa
ge

re
vi
ew
ed
an
d
up
da
te
d

C
om
pl
et
ed

Ja
nu
ar
y
20
11

7
P
C
T
’s
an
d
LA
’s
in
th
e
E
oE
sh
ou
ld
sh
ar
e

kn
ow
le
dg
e
an
d
re
so
ur
ce
s
re
ga
rd
in
g
tr
ai
ni
ng
on

N
H
S
C
H
C
an
d
id
en
tif
y
fu
nd
in
g
to
su
pp
or
ta
pr
oj
ec
t

w
hi
ch
fo
cu
se
s
on
;t
he
co
re
co
m
pe
te
nc
ie
s
re
qu
ire
d

by
sp
ec
ia
lis
th
ea
lth
an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re
st
af
ft
o

su
cc
es
sf
ul
ly
im
pl
em
en
tt
he
N
at
io
na
lF
ra
m
ew
or
k,

de
si
gn
s
an
ad
va
nc
ed
tr
ai
ni
ng
pr
og
ra
m
m
e
w
hi
ch

dr
aw
s
on
th
e
N
H
S
C
on
tin
ui
ng
H
ea
lth
ca
re
P
ra
ct
ic
e

G
ui
da
nc
e
an
d
al
so
w
or
ks
w
ith
a
pr
of
es
si
on
al

tr
ai
ni
ng
/h
ig
he
r
ed
uc
at
io
n
bo
dy
to
as
si
st
in

de
si
gn
in
g,
de
liv
er
in
g
an
d
ac
cr
ed
iti
ng
th
e
tr
ai
ni
ng

w
ith
a
vi
ew

to
it
le
ad
in
g
to
a
su
ita
bl
e
qu
al
ifi
ca
tio
n.

F
un
di
ng
ha
s
be
en
ag
re
ed

by
Im
pr
ov
em
en
tE
as
tt
o

su
pp
or
tt
hi
s
w
or
k
in
20
10
-1
1

C
ou
rs
e
ap
pr
ov
ed
in
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p

w
ith
U
ni
ve
rs
ity
of
E
ss
ex
.F
irs
t

co
ur
se
co
m
m
en
ce
d
Ja
nu
ar
y

20
11
.

Ji
m
Le
dw
id
ge

(f
re
el
an
ce
)
w
ill

w
or
k
w
ith
a

co
re
gr
ou
p
of

P
C
T
an
d
LA

le
ad
s
to
de
liv
er

th
is
pr
oj
ec
t.

M
ile
st
on
es
to
be

in
co
rp
or
at
ed
in
to

se
pa
ra
te
ac
tio
n

pl
an
to
be

m
on
ito
re
d
by

JI
P
.P
ro
je
ct
to
be

co
m
pl
et
ed
by

en
d
of
M
ar
ch

20
11

8
LA
’s
sh
ou
ld
se
ek
cl
ar
ifi
ca
tio
n
fr
om

th
ei
r
P
C
T

co
lle
ag
ue
s
re
ga
rd
in
g
an
y
di
ffi
cu
lti
es
in
en
ga
gi
ng

so
ci
al
ca
re
st
af
fin
g
th
ei
r
ar
ea
an
d
ta
ke
ac
tio
n
to

ad
dr
es
s
an
y
co
nc
er
ns
ar
is
in
g,
be
ar
in
g
in
m
in
d
th
e

28
da
y
tim
es
ca
le
to
co
m
pl
et
e
th
e
N
H
S
C
H
C

pr
oc
es
s.
W
he
re
LA

le
ad
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
ar
e

un
cl
ea
r,
th
is
sh
ou
ld
be
ad
dr
es
se
d
en
su
rin
g
th
e

of
fic
er
gi
ve
n
th
is
ro
le
ha
s
su
ffi
ci
en
ts
en
io
rit
y.

Is
su
es
ad
dr
es
se
d
th
ro
ug
h

pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p
w
or
ki
ng
an
d

di
sc
us
si
on
at
re
gu
la
r
jo
in
t

H
ea
lth
/L
A
m
ee
tin
gs

S
ch
ed
ul
e
of
m
ee
tin
gs
to
be

ag
re
ed

E
ns
ur
e
re
pr
es
en
ta
tiv
es

fr
om

he
al
th
/L
A
in

at
te
nd
an
ce

T
O
R
de
ve
lo
pe
d

Jo
in
tp
ro
ce
ss
es
in
pl
ac
e

G
ai
lC
ha
pm
an

J
S
im
ps
on
,

B
ed
fo
rd

B
or
ou
gh
.

S
M
itc
he
lm
or
e,

C
en
tr
al

B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire

C
om
pl
et
ed

A
ug
us
t2
01
0

9
P
C
T
’s
w
he
re
a
la
ck
of
st
af
fin
g
ha
s
be
en
id
en
tif
ie
d

as
a
fa
ct
or
re
st
ric
tin
g
th
ei
r
ab
ili
ty
to
im
pl
em
en
tt
he

C
ur
re
nt
es
ta
bl
is
hm
en
t

co
ns
id
er
ed
an
d
be
in
g

C
on
tin
ue
to
w
or
k
in

pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p
w
ith
LA

N
H
S
B

E
xe
cu
tiv
e

Agenda Item 12
Page 28



P
ag
e
13
of
13

N
H
S
C
H
C
fr
am
ew
or
k
sh
ou
ld
ur
ge
nt
ly
co
ns
id
er

ho
w
th
is
co
ul
d
be
ad
dr
es
se
d.

re
vi
ew
ed
in
lin
e
w
ith
N
H
S
B

re
st
ru
ct
ur
in
g/
fu
tu
re
st
at
e.

co
lle
ag
ue
s.

In
iti
al
m
ee
tin
g
ar
ra
ng
ed

F
eb
20
11
to
ex
pl
or
e
fu
tu
re

cl
us
te
r
w
or
ki
ng
w
ith
ot
he
r

P
C
T
co
lle
ag
ue
s.

N
H
S
B
ar
e
re
cr
ui
tin
g
tw
o

N
ur
se
A
ss
es
so
rs
on
6

m
on
th
se
co
nd
m
en
tt
o

su
pp
or
tC
H
C

T
ea
m

C
om
pl
et
ed

F
eb
ru
ar
y
20
11

In
pr
og
re
ss

F
eb
ru
ar
y
20
11

10
P
C
T
’s
th
at
ha
ve
no
ty
et
am
en
de
d
th
ei
r
pa
ne
la
nd

de
ci
si
on
m
ak
in
g
pr
oc
es
s
sh
ou
ld
re
vi
ew

th
em

in
lig
ht
of
th
e
up
da
te
d
F
ra
m
ew
or
k
an
d
re
ce
nt
ly

pu
bl
is
he
d
P
ra
ct
ic
e
G
ui
da
nc
e.
T
hi
s
sh
ou
ld
be
do
ne

in
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n
w
ith
LA
co
lle
ag
ue
s
to
en
su
re
th
ey

ar
e
co
m
pl
ia
nt
w
ith
D
H
re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
.

C
om
pl
ia
nt
w
ith
D
H

re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
.

G
C
ha
pm
an

C
om
pl
et
ed

F
eb
ru
ar
y
20
10

11
T
he
E
oE

re
gi
on
sh
ou
ld
co
ns
id
er
ho
w
be
st
to

pe
rio
di
ca
lly
au
di
te
lig
ib
ili
ty
de
ci
si
on
s
in
or
de
r
to

en
su
re
co
ns
is
te
nc
y
ac
ro
ss
th
e
re
gi
on
.I
n

es
ta
bl
is
hi
ng
th
is
au
di
t,
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
at
te
nt
io
n
sh
ou
ld

be
gi
ve
n
to
th
os
e
cl
ie
nt
gr
ou
ps
w
he
re
co
nc
er
ns

ab
ou
te
qu
ity
ha
ve
be
en
ex
pr
es
se
d,
no
ta
bl
y

in
di
vi
du
al
s
w
ith
LD
,M
H
is
su
es
an
d
de
m
en
tia
.

T
hi
s
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n
is
to

be
di
sc
us
se
d
by
th
e
P
C
T

le
ad
s
gr
ou
p
so
th
at
th
e
S
H
A

ca
n
de
vi
se
ap
pr
op
ria
te

au
di
tin
g
m
ec
ha
ni
sm
s.

A
ct
io
n
by
E
oE

S
H
A

E
O
E

Agenda Item 12
Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



NHS continuing 
healthcare 
and NHS-funded 
nursing care
Public information booklet

Agenda Item 12
Page 31



Introduction 3

Continuing healthcare 4
What is NHS continuing healthcare? 4
Who is eligible for NHS continuing healthcare? 4

Assessments 6
How are decisions made about who 
is eligible for NHS continuing healthcare? 6
What services will be provided? 8

Reviews 8
What if I am not eligible for NHS continuing healthcare? 8
Who do I contact if I am not happy with the outcome? 9

NHS-funded nursing care 10
What is NHS-funded nursing care? 10
Who is eligible for NHS-funded nursing care? 10
Are there different levels of payment 
for NHS-funded nursing care? 11

Contents

2

Agenda Item 12
Page 32



This leaflet is a guide for individuals who may be in need of 
ongoing ‘continuing care’ support from health and social care 
professionals as a result of disability, accident or illness, and 
explains the process used to determine whether an individual 
is eligible for care funded entirely by the NHS.   

We understand that continuing care is a complex and highly sensitive 
area, which can affect individuals at a very vulnerable stage of their 
lives. In the past, each of the 28 strategic health authorities had their 
own rules, tools and processes for deciding who was eligible for 
NHS-funded care, which created issues of inequity. However, there has 
been national guidance available since 2007 which sets out a single, 
National Framework for determining eligibility for NHS continuing 
healthcare and for NHS-funded nursing care. 

The purpose of the National Framework is to provide for fair and 
consistent access to NHS funding across England, regardless of location, 
so that individuals with equal needs should have an equal chance of 
getting their care funded by the NHS. 

When the National Framework was introduced on 1 October 2007, 
there was a commitment that we would review the guidance after 
one year and this work has now been completed. The review has not 
changed the way in which eligibility decisions are made, nor has it 
changed the level of nursing/healthcare needs that entitles an individual 
to NHS continuing healthcare. This leaflet takes into consideration the 
changes that have been made within the National Framework following 
the review and has been specifically produced to answer your questions 
about NHS continuing healthcare and NHS-funded nursing care. 

Introduction

3

Agenda Item 12
Page 33



Continuing healthcare 

What is NHS continuing healthcare? 
NHS continuing healthcare is the name given to a package 
of care which is arranged and funded solely by the NHS 
for individuals outside of hospital who have ongoing 
healthcare needs. You can receive continuing healthcare 
in any setting, including your own home or a care home. 
NHS continuing healthcare is free, unlike help from social 
services for which a financial charge may be made depending 
on your income and savings. 

In your own home, this means that the NHS will pay for healthcare 
(e.g. services from a community nurse or specialist therapist) and 
personal care (e.g. help with bathing, dressing and laundry). In a care 
home, the NHS also pays for your care home fees, including board 
and accommodation. 

Who is eligible for NHS continuing healthcare? 
Anyone assessed as having a certain level of care needs may receive 
NHS continuing healthcare. It is not dependent on a particular disease, 
diagnosis or condition, nor on who provides the care or where that care 
is provided. If your overall care needs show that your primary need is 
a health need, you should be eligible for NHS continuing healthcare. 
Once eligible for NHS continuing healthcare, your care will be funded 
by the NHS but this is subject to review, and should your care needs 
change the funding arrangements may also change.

4

Agenda Item 12
Page 34



Whether someone has a ‘primary health need’ is assessed 
by looking at all of their care needs and relating them to 
four key indicators: 

– this describes the characteristics and type of the 
individual’s needs and the overall effect these needs have on 
the individual, including the type of interventions required 
to manage those needs. 

– this is about how the individual’s needs present 
and interact and the level of skill required to monitor the 
symptoms, treat the condition and/or manage the care. 

– this is the extent and severity of the individual’s 
needs and the support needed to meet them, which includes 
the need for sustained/ongoing care. 

– this is about how hard it is to predict 
changes in an individual’s needs that might create challenges 
in managing them, including the risks to the individual’s health 
if adequate and timely care is not provided. 

5

Agenda Item 12
Page 35



How are decisions made about who is 
eligible for NHS continuing healthcare? 
The whole of the decision making process should be 
‘person centred’. This means putting the individual and 
their views about their needs and the care and support 
required at the centre of the process. It also means making 
sure that the individual plays a full role in the assessment and 
decision making process and gets support to do this where 
needed. This could be by the individual asking a friend or 
relative to help them explain their views. Primary care trusts 
(PCTs) should also make the individual aware of advocacy 
support services that may be able to assist. 

The first step for most individuals is the Checklist Tool. This is 
a screening tool to help health and social care staff work out 
whether needs might possibly be of a level or type that might 
make the individual entitled to NHS continuing healthcare. 
The Checklist will usually be completed when someone is 
assessing or reviewing health or social care needs. The Checklist 
does not indicate whether the individual is eligible for NHS 
continuing healthcare, only whether they require full assessment 
of eligibility for NHS continuing healthcare.

If a Checklist has been completed and suggests that there is a 
possibility that you might be eligible for NHS continuing healthcare, 
the individual completing the Checklist will contact your PCT which 

Assessments

6

Agenda Item 12
Page 36



will arrange for a multidisciplinary team to carry out an up-to-date 
assessment of your needs. A multidisciplinary team is made up of 
two or more health and social care professionals who are involved 
in your care. The assessment will, with your permission, involve 
contributions from all of the health and social care professionals 
involved in your care to build an overall picture of your needs. 
In some cases, the multidisciplinary team will ask for more detailed 
specialist assessments from these professionals. 

The multidisciplinary team will use the information from your 
assessment to complete a Decision Support Tool. The Decision 
Support Tool looks at 11 different types of need such as mobility, 
nutrition and behaviour. The purpose of the tool is to help decide 
what are the nature, complexity, intensity and unpredictability of 
your needs and so whether your primary needs are health needs.  
The multidisciplinary team will then make a recommendation to the 
PCT as to whether you are eligible for NHS continuing healthcare. 
The PCT should usually accept this recommendation except in 
exceptional circumstances.

If you need an urgent package of care due to a rapidly deteriorating 
condition, then the Fast Track Tool may be used instead of the 
Decision Support Tool. If this is the case, an appropriate clinician will 
complete the Fast Track Tool and send it directly to the PCT which 
will arrange for care to be provided as quickly as possible. Once this 
has happened, a PCT may then arrange in some cases for a Decision 
Support Tool to be completed after the Fast Track Tool has been 
used. This could lead to a decision that the individual is no longer 
eligible for NHS continuing healthcare funding.

In all cases, you should be sent a written decision as to whether you 
are entitled to NHS continuing healthcare together with reasons for 
the decision.

7

Agenda Item 12
Page 37



What services will be provided?
If you are entitled to NHS continuing healthcare, the PCT will discuss 
options with you as to how your needs and care will be managed 
and the best setting in which to do that (e.g. at home or in a care 
home) and which organisation will be responsible for providing for 
some or all of these needs. 

When deciding on how your needs are met, your wishes and 
expectations of how and where the care is delivered should be 
documented and taken into account.

Reviews

You will have a review of your needs after three months and 
then at least every year. Neither the NHS nor a local authority 
should withdraw from an existing care arrangement without 
a joint review and reassessment of your needs, and without 
first consulting with one another and with you about the 
proposed changes.  

What if I am not eligible for 
NHS continuing healthcare? 
If you are not eligible for NHS continuing healthcare, the local 
authority will discuss with you whether you may be eligible for 
support from them. If you are not eligible for NHS continuing 
healthcare but still have health needs, then the NHS may still pay 
for part of the package of support. This is sometimes known as a 
‘joint package’ of care. One way in which this is provided is through 

8

Agenda Item 12
Page 38



NHS-funded nursing care (see below). It can also be by the NHS 
providing other funding or services towards meeting your needs. 
Where the local authority is also part funding your care package 
then, depending upon your income and savings, you may have 
to pay a contribution towards the costs of their part of the care. 
There is no charge for the NHS part of a joint package of care. 
There are more details about NHS-funded nursing care below.

Whether or not you are eligible for NHS continuing healthcare, 
you are still able to make use of all of the other services from the 
NHS in your area in the same way as any other NHS patient.

Who do I contact if I am not happy with the outcome? 
If you disagree with a decision not to proceed to full assessment 
of eligibility for NHS continuing healthcare following completion 
of a Checklist, you can ask the PCT to reconsider the decision.

If you disagree with the eligibility decision made by the PCT 
(after a full assessment and the Decision Support Tool has been 
completed) or if you have concerns about the process used to 
reach the decision, you can ask the PCT to review the decision 
or you can ask for an independent review of your case. The PCT 
local resolution procedures should be used first unless use of 
such procedures would cause unreasonable delay. To request an 
independent review, please write to your PCT which will contact 
the strategic health authority for your area and ask them to arrange 
a review, unless the matter can be resolved locally. 

Any individual has a right to complain about any aspect of the 
service they receive from the NHS, the local authority or any 
provider of care. The details of the complaints procedure are 
available from the relevant organisation.

9

Agenda Item 12
Page 39



What is NHS-funded nursing care? 
By law, local authorities cannot provide registered nursing 
care. For individuals in care homes with nursing, registered 
nurses are usually employed by the care home itself and, in 
order to fund this nursing care, the NHS makes a payment 
directly to the care home. 

Registered nursing can involve many different aspects of care. It can 
include direct nursing tasks as well as the planning, supervision and 
monitoring of nursing and healthcare tasks to meet your needs. 

Who is eligible for NHS-funded nursing care? 

You should receive NHS-funded nursing care if: 

you are resident within a care home that is registered to provide 
nursing care, and

you do not qualify for NHS continuing healthcare but have been 
assessed as requiring the services of a registered nurse. 

Most individuals will not need to have a separate assessment for 
NHS-funded nursing care if they have already been considered 
for NHS continuing healthcare as this process will give sufficient 
information to judge the need for NHS-funded nursing care. 
However, if an assessment is needed, your PCT will arrange this. 
If you are not happy with the decision made regarding NHS-funded 
nursing care, you can ask the PCT for the decision to be reviewed.

NHS-funded nursing care 

10

Agenda Item 12
Page 40



Are there different levels of payment 
for NHS-funded nursing care? 
NHS-funded nursing care is paid at the same rate across England. 
In 2009/10, this is £106.30 per week. Until 30 September 2007, 
there were three different banded payment rates for nursing care.

Any individual that was on the high band of NHS-funded nursing 
care under the previous three band system is entitled to continue 
on this band until:

they no longer have nursing needs, or

they no longer live in a care home that provides nursing, or

their nursing needs have reduced so that they do not qualify 
for the high band anymore (they would move onto the single 
band rate of £106.30 instead), or

they are entitled to NHS continuing healthcare instead.

If you are eligible for NHS-funded nursing care, the NHS will 
arrange for the payment to be made directly to your care home. 

11

Agenda Item 12
Page 41



Crown copyright 2009
298653 1p 200k Oct 09 (STE)
Produced by COI for the Department of Health

www.dh.gov.uk/publications

Agenda Item 12
Page 42



 
 
 
Meeting: Social Care, Health & Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Date: 28 February 2011 
Subject: Update on the Revised Fair Access to Care Services 

Eligibility Criteria for Adult Social Care  
Report of: Cllr. Mrs. Carole Hegley, Portfolio Holder Social Care & Health 
Summary: This report aims to highlight the impact of the new policy on new service 

users. 
 
 
Contact Officer Althea Mitcham, Head of Business Infrastructure 
Public/Exempt: Public 
Wards Affected: All 
Function of: Council 

 
 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
Council Priorities: 
The delivery of Adult Social Care services meets with the Council’s vision to ‘improve 
the quality of life of all in Central Bedfordshire’ and its priority of ‘supporting and caring 
for an ageing population’. 
 
Financial: 
 
Analysis of the data available suggests that there has not been a direct increase in 
expenditure on services due to the revision of the Fair Access to Care Services 
Eligibility Criteria for Adult Social Care. The complexity of the cases coming through, 
however, has resulted in service users being assessed at the higher bands of Critical 
and Substantial need and therefore qualifying for a greater number of services. The 
impact of this has been seen and reported in the quarterly budget monitoring reports 
 
Legal: 
No direct implications. 
 
Risk Management: 
Increasing access to services by lowering the threshold could potentially have 
financial implications for the Council. 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 
No direct implications. 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 

Agenda Item 13
Page 43



The eligibility criteria will promote independence and social inclusion of vulnerable 
adults, having regard to Article 8 of the Human Rights Act which stats that ‘everyone 
has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his 
correspondence’. 
 
Community Safety: 
No direct implications. 
 
Sustainability: 
The policy supports the Sustainable Community Strategy in ensuring  that everyone 
has access to high quality health and social care services when they need them and 
to help Central Bedfordshire’s population live healthy an independent lives. 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 
1. That the committee notes and considers this report. 

 
 
Introduction. 
 
1. 
 

A report detailing the Council’s approach to Fair Access to Care Services 
(FACS) Eligibility Criteria for Adult Social Care was reported to the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee on 4 February 2010, with recommendation that the 
Fair Access to Care Services to Adult Social Care’s threshold be lowered from 
substantial to moderate.   The priority bands would still remain as Critical and 
Substantial, but the proposed change would allow for the provision of one-off, 
short term, time limited, or occasional services on a preventative basis to an 
individual seeking care support, where the provision of that service will prevent 
them from deteriorating to a higher risk band.  The committee asked for an 
update report of the impact the change in threshold may have.   
 

2. The Fair Access to Care Services Eligibility Criteria for Adult Social Care 
framework consists of four bands of eligibility – critical, substantial, moderate 
and low, which represent the seriousness of the risk to an individual’s 
independence if problems and issues were not addressed.   
 

3. The review of the policy was undertaken for Central Bedfordshire Council to 
define the threshold levels for services as a new unitary authority and ensure 
that its focus includes the provision of services based on prevention and early 
intervention. 
 

Effect of the Threshold Change 
 
4. An analysis was undertaken based on a comparison of data collected from 1 

April 2010 to 30 September 2010 with data for the same period in the previous 
year of new customers and is attached at appendix A. 
 

Agenda Item 13
Page 44



5. The data analysed suggests that overall there has been a reduction in 
approaches to social services from people seeking support.  There is little 
variation in the numbers going through to assessments, but those who go on 
to receive services following an assessment have increased, as has the 
number of services received. 
   

6. This outcome suggests that people are approaching us with more complex 
needs and following assessment there are a greater number of services being 
delivered.  From April to 30 September 2010, a majority of referrals have been 
classified as critical or substantial 1,381 (89%) and 88 referrals were classified 
as moderate representing 6% of the overall total.  Similar percentages were 
evident for both the 18-64 and 65+ age ranges. 
 

7. When compared with the same period for the previous year the results are very 
similar with 87% of referrals being classified as Critical or substantial and 6% as 
Moderate. 
 

8. The data indicates that there were more assessments undertaken for the for the 
18-64 and 65-74 age groups.  Those aged 75+ were slightly down by 6% on the 
previous year.  There has been a significant increase in mental health 
assessments during the review period, but this could be as the result of 
improved recording practice. 
 

Conclusion and Next Steps  
 
9. The initial analysis of data suggests that the revision in the Fair Access to 

Care Services Eligibility Criteria for Adult Social care threshold has not 
increased approaches to Adult Social Care or demand for services.   
 

10.  Monitoring of the criteria will continue and will be reported back to the 
committee after a further twelve month period.  

 
Appendices: 
Appendix A - Update on the Revised Fair Access to Care Services Eligibility Criteria for 
Adult Social Care 
 

Background Papers: 
Report to the Social Care, Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee -  
Review of the Adult Social Care Services Eligibility Policy on 4 February 2010.  
 

Location of papers:  
Priory House, Chicksands, Bedfordshire 
 

 

Agenda Item 13
Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
 
Update on the Revised Fair Access to Care Services Eligibility Criteria 
for Adult Social Care 
 
Comparison of approaches (referrals) for the same period during 2010 against 
2009 
 
 
1/4/2009  -  30/9/2009 
Eligibility Criteria  (18-64) 65+ Total 
Critical 125 328 453 
Substantial 352 539 891 
Moderate 84 21 105 
Low 64 1 65 
Criteria fully met* 35 216 251 
Not recorded 21 41 62 
Total   1,827 
* Critical or Substantial (The classification ‘criteria fully met’ used during 2009-2010 
ceased to be used from 1 April 2010) 
 
 
 
1/4/2010  -  30/9/2010 
Eligibility Criteria  (18-64) 65+ Total 
Critical 169 363 532 
Substantial 243 606 849 
Moderate 27 61 88 
Low 0 1 1 
Not recorded 30 54 84 
Total   1,554 
 

Agenda Item 13
Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Meeting: Social Care Health and Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Date: 28 February 2011  
Subject: Work Programme 2010 – 2011 & Executive Forward Plan 

 
Report of: Chief Executive 
Summary: The report provides Members with details of the currently drafted 

Committee work programme and the latest Executive Forward Plan. 
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Cheryl Powell, Overview & Scrutiny Officer  
Public/Exempt: Public 
Wards Affected: All 
Function of: Council 

 
 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
Council Priorities: 
The work programme of the Social Care Health and Housing Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee will contribute indirectly to all 5 Council priorities. 
 
Financial: 
n/a 
 
Legal: 
n/a 
 
Risk Management: 
n/a 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 
n/a 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 
n/a 
 
Community Safety: 
n/a 
 
Sustainability: 
n/a 
 

 

Agenda Item 14
Page 49



RECOMMENDATION(S): 
1. that the Social Care Health and Housing  Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 
 (a) considers and approves the work programme attached, subject to 

any further amendments it may wish to make; 
 

 (b) considers the Executive Forward Plan; and 
 

 (c) considers whether it wishes to add any further items to the work 
programme and/or establish any Task Forces to assist it in 
reviewing specific items. 
 

 

 
Work Programme 
 
1. 
 

Attached at Appendix A is the currently drafted work programme for the 
Committee.  
 

2. 
 
 

Also attached at Appendix B is the latest version of the Executive’s Forward 
Plan so that Overview & Scrutiny Members are fully aware of the key issues 
Executive Members will be taking decisions upon in the coming months. 
Those items relating specifically to this Committee’s terms of reference are 
shaded in light grey. 
 

3. The Committee is now requested to consider the work programme attached 
and amend or add to it as necessary. This will allow officers to plan 
accordingly but will not preclude further items being added during the course 
of the year if Members so wish and capacity exists. 
 

Task Forces 
 
4. 
 

In addition to consideration of the work programme, Members will also need to 
consider how each item will be reviewed i.e. by the Committee itself (over one 
or a number of Committee meetings) or by establishing a Member Task Force 
to review an item in greater depth and report back its findings. 
 

Conclusion 
 
5. Members are requested to consider and agree the attached work programme, 

subject to any further amendments/additions they may wish to make and 
highlight those items within it where they may wish to establish a Task Force 
to assist the Committee in its work. 

 

Appendices: 
A – Social Care Health and Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee Work Programme  
B – Executive Forward Plan  
 
Background Papers: (open to public inspection) 
None. 
 
Location of papers: Priory House, Chicksands 
 

Agenda Item 14
Page 50



 
 

$1eam0yzj.doc - Updated 15/02/2011 1 

Appendix A 
 

Draft Work Programme for Social Care, Health and Housing 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 2010 – 2011 

 
 

Ref Indicative 
Overview & 
Scrutiny 
Meeting Date 
 

Report Title Issue to be considered Comment 

1. 28th February ®  
 

Update on the Review of 
the Eligibility Criteria  

The Committee will receive its review report 
detailing the Council’s approach to the 
framework for setting the eligibility criteria 
for adult social care 
 

Guidance issued in 2003 provides councils with a 
framework for setting their eligibility criteria for adult 
social care.  As such, implementation should lead 
to fairer and more consistent eligibility decision.   
 

2.  Diabetes Care in Central 
Bedfordshire  

The Committee will receive a report 
outlining Diabetes Care in the region.  
  

Members might wish to consider the issue of GPs 
having the correct skill set to deliver services of this 
type. 
 

3.  Continuing Health Care  The Committee will receive a report 
describing NHS Bedfordshire’s responsibility 
for NHS Continuing Healthcare in the 
Central Bedfordshire locality.  The 
Committee will also be informed of 
Community Health Care in the region.   
 

PCTs need to have clear arrangements 
with other NHS organisations (e.g. Foundation 
Trusts) and independent/voluntary sector partners 
to ensure effective operation of Continuing Health 
Care but there are also specific requirements for 
local authorities (LAs) to cooperate and work in 
partnership with NHS Bedfordshire. 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 51



 
 

$1eam0yzj.doc - Updated 15/02/2011 2 

Ref Indicative 
Overview & 
Scrutiny 
Meeting Date 
 

Report Title Issue to be considered Comment 

4. 28th March A vision for Adult Social 
Care and Transparency 
in outcomes: a 
framework for adult social 
care.   

The Committee will receive a report 
outlining the government’s vision for adult 
social.  The report will also highlight – 
Transparency in Outcomes: a framework for 
adult social care, which begins a 
consultation on a strategic approach to 
quality and outcomes in adult social care.  
The consultation runs to February 2011. 

“A Vision for Adult Social Care: Capable 
Communities and Active Citizens” describes 
government’s vision for a modern system of social 
care. A consistent theme across the aims of this 
vision is ensuring the best outcomes are achieved 
for those needing social care, their families and 
carers and the wider local community.  The 
consultation document proposes a new strategy for 
transparency, quality and outcomes in social care 

 
5.  Strategic Tenancy Policy  The Government proposes a new Affordable 

Rent, for Housing Association new-build 
accommodation and re-lets of existing 
accommodation, which will be at up to 80% 
of market rents.  The Council is required to 
produce a Strategic Tenancy Policy, which 
will also set out a position on flexible 
tenancies. 
 

The Council’s Strategic Tenancy Policy will have 
implications for the affordability of accommodation 
in Central Bedfordshire and, depending on the 
Council’s position, could adversely impact on the 
delivery of new affordable housing, and could result 
in major sites becoming stalled. In addition, the 
Policy will set out the Council’s position on flexible 
tenancies and how they should be used. 

6.  Hospital Discharge  To provide Members with a report outlining 
the hospital discharge process. To assist 
with their understanding, Members will be 
provided with a an overview of patient flow.  

At the 4th January Shared Services TF meeting, 
Members agreed to refer the matter of the charging 
methodology1 to the Social Care, Health & Housing 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee, with a view 
towards gathering, in the first instance, data on the 
number of CBC patients discharged Lister, Stoke 
Mandeville and Milton Keynes Hospitals. 
 

7.  Quarter 3 Budget 
Monitoring Report  
 

To receive Q3 Budget information for the 
Social Care Health and Housing Directorate 

The Committee will receive  a statement of the 
position Directorate’s budget for Q3  
  

                                                
1 Based on the old Bedfordshire County Council’s administrative area 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 52



 
 

$1eam0yzj.doc - Updated 15/02/2011 3 

Ref Indicative 
Overview & 
Scrutiny 
Meeting Date 
 

Report Title Issue to be considered Comment 

8.  Quarter 3 Performance 
Monitoring Report  
 

To receive Q3 Performance information for 
the Social Care Health and Housing 
Directorate. 
 

The Committee will receive a statement of the 
position Directorate’s performance for Q3.  
  

9.  TBC: Acquiring Acute 
Services  
 

PPT from SEPT describing the acquisition 
of community Health Services  
 

The Committee will receive the process to be 
undertaken as part of the Divestment Proposal for 
Provider Services” by which EoE SHA will lead on 
the migration of both Bedfordshire and Luton 
provider organisations to new ownership by March 
2011. 

10.  NHS Bedfordshire 
Estates Strategy: 6 
month progress report 

Update considering  the consultation 
process of the master plan consultation and 
associated consultation proposals 
 

Update from the 18th October 2010 OSC, where 
the PCT‘s Estates Strategy was received by the 
OSC.  The PCT will be reviewing the Estates 
Strategy in lieu of the current capital and revenue 
allocation.  The PCT has 5 strategic locations in 
mind for prospective sites for GP hubs.  The 
Committee is asked to consider the proposals as 
the consultation will  run concurrently from July / 
August 2010 – March / April 2011 
 

11. 13th June Central Bedfordshire 
Council Adult Social 
Care:  Customer 
Feedback – Complaints, 
Compliments Annual 
Report 2009/10 
 

To provide members of the Committee with 
a 6 month progress report  on the statistics 
on the number of cases received; complaint 
outcomes (upheld/not upheld); learning and 
improvements resulting from complaints; 
and cases referred to the Local Government 
Ombudsman.   
 

The purpose of this report is to fulfill the duty to 
produce an annual report of the complaints 
procedure for Adult Social Care for 2009/10.   
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 53



 
 

$1eam0yzj.doc - Updated 15/02/2011 4 

Ref Indicative 
Overview & 
Scrutiny 
Meeting Date 
 

Report Title Issue to be considered Comment 

12.  Community Dental 
Services  

The Committee will receive the formal 
proposals for community engagement and 
stakeholder involvement to be used by the 
NHS when quantifying proposals and plans 
for community dental services, to become a 
social enterprise.   
 

This service is seeking to become a social 
enterprise rather than be part of the divestment of 
community services to a new NHS provider. The 
proposed social enterprise will retain the core 
services and NHS Bedfordshire would commission 
the remaining services from other providers. It is 
proposed that there would be no reduction in the 
quantum of services, but some changes to where 
the services are provided. Officers form the NHS 
will present the committee with the proposals 
including how they intend to communicate and 
engage with patients and other stakeholders. 
 

13.  Quality, Innovation 
Productivity and 
Prevention (QIPP) 

To present to the Committee with an update 
from the 22nd November on the programme 
for QIPP. 

NHS organisations at regional and local level have 
QIPP plans in place to address the quality and 
productivity challenge. Supporting these are twelve 
national workstreams designed to help NHS staff 
successfully deliver these changes.  Five 
workstreams relate to commissioning of care and 
five relate to the running and staffing of NHS 
organisations. Two focus on primary care 
commissioning and contracting, and digital 
technology.  
 

14.  Consultation on 
rationalising Acute 
Services  
 

The Committee will receive a report 
considering the consultation of the 
rationalisation of acute services in the 
region.  The Consultation is due to start in 
August 2011 
 

  
 A

genda Item
 14

P
age 54



 
 

$1eam0yzj.doc - Updated 15/02/2011 5 

Ref Indicative 
Overview & 
Scrutiny 
Meeting Date 
 

Report Title Issue to be considered Comment 

15.  Directorate approach to 
the Corporate Web 
Strategy  
 

The Committee will receive an item on the 
Council’s Web Strategy in relation to 
customers accessing Adult Social Care 
Services via the Council’s Website.  
 

The Committee might consider and discuss what 
the Directorate can do ensure customers are aware 
of and use the web to contact the Directorate.  This 
is an opportunity for established and potential 
service users to contact and communicate with the 
Council, particularly the most vulnerable in the 
region.  
 

16.  Quarter 4  Budget 
Monitoring Report  
 
 

To receive the Budget information for the 
Social Care Health and Housing Directorate. 

The Committee will receive  a statement of the 
position Directorate’s budget for Q4  
  

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 55



 
 

$1eam0yzj.doc - Updated 15/02/2011 6 

 
 
Previous Work Programme Items 
 
17. 28th February ®  

 
Update on the Review of 
the Eligibility Criteria  

The Committee will receive its review report 
detailing the Council’s approach to the 
framework for setting the eligibility criteria 
for adult social care 
 

Guidance issued in 2003 provides councils with a 
framework for setting their eligibility criteria for 
adult social care.  As such, implementation should 
lead to fairer and more consistent eligibility 
decision.   
 

18.  Diabetes Care in Central 
Bedfordshire  

The Committee will receive a report 
outlining Diabetes Care in the region.  
  

Members might wish to consider the issue of GPs 
having the correct skill set to deliver services of 
this type. 
 

19.  Continuing Health Care  The Committee will receive a report 
describing NHS Bedfordshire’s responsibility 
for NHS Continuing Healthcare in the 
Central Bedfordshire locality.  The 
Committee will also be informed of 
Community Health Care in the region.   
 

PCTs need to have clear arrangements 
with other NHS organisations (e.g. Foundation 
Trusts) and independent/voluntary sector partners 
to ensure effective operation of Continuing Health 
Care but there are also specific requirements for 
local authorities (LAs) to cooperate and work in 
partnership with NHS Bedfordshire. 
 

20. 24th January Health White Paper 
“Equity and Excellence” 
 

Directorate scoping paper on the potential 
changes to the NHS and the associated 
impact for Central Bedfordshire’s residents  

The NHS White Paper, Equity and excellence: 
Liberating the NHS, sets out the Government's 
long-term vision for the future of the NHS.  The 
vision builds on the core values and principles of 
the NHS.  It sets out how NHS Beds should put in 
place  processes to: 
• put patients at the heart of everything the NHS 
does;  
• focus on continuously improving those things 
that really matter to patients - the outcome of 
their healthcare; and  
• empower and liberate clinicians to innovate, 
with the freedom to focus on improving 
healthcare services 

 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 56



 
 

$1eam0yzj.doc - Updated 15/02/2011 7 

21.  Base Budget 2011/2012: 
Report of the Directorate:  
 

To receive directorate proposals regarding 
the draft revenue budget 2011/12 

To inform the Social Care Health and Housing 
Committee of the Budget proposals for 2011 
/2012 
 

22.  Quarter 2 Performance 
Report  

To receive Q2 performance information for 
the Social Care Health and Housing 
Directorate. 
 

The Committee will receive a statement of the 
Directorate’s performance position for Q2.  
  

23.  Annual Performance 
Assessment for Adult 
Social Care  
 

Members will be informed of outcomes of 
the recovery programme to date  
 

Performance in adult social care services is 
subject to an annual assessment by the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC). The CQC require that 
the outcome of the performance assessment is 
reported to the CBC’s Executive. 
 

24.  Central Bedfordshire 
Council Adult Social 
Care:  Customer 
Feedback – Complaints, 
Compliments Annual 
Report 2009/10 
 

To provide members of the Committee with 
statistics on the number of cases received; 
complaint outcomes (upheld/not upheld); 
learning and improvements resulting from 
complaints; and cases referred to the Local 
Government Ombudsman.   
 

The purpose of this report is to fulfill the duty to 
produce an annual report of the complaints 
procedure for Adult Social Care for 2009/10.   
 

25. 22nd November  
 

Corporate Budget 
Strategy 

To assess all savings proposals for financial 
robustness and to consider the viability and 
suitability of specific proposals in the Social 
Care Health and Housing Directorate. 
 

 

26.  Quality, Innovation 
Productivity and 
Prevention (QIPP) 

To present to the Committee with an update 
on the programme for QIPP. 

NHS organisations at regional and local level have 
QIPP plans in place to address the quality and 
productivity challenge. Supporting these are 
twelve national workstreams designed to help 
NHS staff successfully deliver these changes.   
Five workstreams relate to commissioning of care 
and five relate to the running and staffing of NHS 
organisations. Two focus on primary care 
commissioning and contracting, and digital 
technology.  
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 57



 
 

$1eam0yzj.doc - Updated 15/02/2011 8 

27.  The Healthier 
Communities Strategy  

To present the Committee with the 
Consultation process, consultation reposnse 
and next steps.   

A strategy has been drafted which sets out the 
key priorities believed to provide a healthier, more 
prosperous community within Central 
Bedfordshire, and what the region will look like in 
the short, medium and long term.  A series of 
focused priorities need to be produced that the 
Council and its partners are able to deliver 
against, which will in turn make a real difference 
to people in Central Bedfordshire.   
 

28. 18th October ®  
 

NHS Bedfordshire 
Estates Strategy: 
Premises Development 

Consideration of consultation process of the 
master plan consultation and associated 
consultation proposals 

Update from the 8th April 2010 OSC, where the 
PCT‘s Estates Strategy was received by the OSC.  
The PCT will be reviewing the Estates Strategy in 
lieu of the current capital and revenue allocation.  
The PCT has 5 strategic locations in mind for 
prospective sites for GP hubs .   The Committee 
asked to consider the proposals as the 
consultation will  run concurrently from July / 
August 2010 – March / April 2011 
 

29.  Pharmacy Needs 
Assessment (PNA) 

This guidance was developed to support 
PCT’s in producing their PNAs, which must 
be published by 1st February 2011. It will 
help PCT’s develop a plan for how they will 
prepare their own PNA to deliver improved 
services for patients in the Central 
Bedfordshire area. 
 
  

The world class commissioning programme is  
designed to raise the ambitions of primary care 
trusts (PCT’s) to deliver better health and 
wellbeing for the population.  PCT’s' 
commissioning priorities are driven by the joint 
strategic needs assessment (JSNA) and the 
pharmaceutical needs assessment (PNA) is a key 
component of the JSNA. The PNA must therefore 
be owned by the PCT's commissioning team as 
an intrinsic part of the overall assessment of the 
local community's needs.  Members are asked to 
consider the PNA as a key tool for identifying what 
is needed at a local level to support the 
commissioning intentions for pharmaceutical 
services and other services that could be 
delivered by community pharmacies and other 
providers.  
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 58



 
 

$1eam0yzj.doc - Updated 15/02/2011 9 

30.  NHS Summary Care 
Record  

NHS Beds will provide the Committee with a 
report on the NHS Summary Care Record 
programme, illustrating the ways in which it 
intends to ensure patient privacy is upheld 
in light of potential breaches of ICT servers.  
The Committee will also receive an 
explanation as to why Milton Keynes 
Council has opted to advise patients to opt 
out of the programme.  
  

The NHS is introducing the NHS Care Records 
Service (NHS CRS), to improve the safety and 
quality of your care.  Over time, the NHS CRS will 
begin to provide healthcare staff with quicker 
access to reliable information about patients to 
help with your treatment, including in an 
emergency.  The purpose of NHS CRS is to allow 
information about you to be accessed more 
quickly, and gradually to phase out paper and film 
records which can be more difficult to access.  
There are two parts to your record: 

i Detailed records - held locally  
ii Summary Care Records (SCR) – held 

nationally  
 

31.  Bedfordshire Community 
Health Services 
 

The Committee will receive the process to 
be undertaken as part of the Divestment 
Proposal for Provider Services. 
 

The Committee will receive the process to be 
undertaken as part of the Divestment Proposal for 
Provider Services” by which EoE SHA will lead on 
the migration of both Bedfordshire and Luton 
provider organisations to new ownership by March 
2011. 
 

32.  Annual Report of Bedford 
and Central Bedfordshire 
Adult Safeguarding 
Board  

To receive the Annual Report of the 
Safeguarding Adults Board  

The report sets out what actions and progress has 
been taken in response to the key objectives and 
includes safeguarding activity over the same 
period. 
 

33.  Draft Empty Homes 
Strategy 2010 
 

The key aim of the Strategy is to bring 
empty homes back into use and it 
acknowledges the concerns of the 
community about empty homes and the 
associated issues that relate to the image of 
the region. 
 

Update from the 13th August 2009 meeting  
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 59



 
 

$1eam0yzj.doc - Updated 15/02/2011 10 

34.  Review of Choice Based 
Lettings and draft 
Allocations Policy 
 

Current position of the Council’s 
development of a Choice Based Lettings 
and draft Allocations Policy 

Central Beds Council is changing the way it 
allocates properties from a points based system to 
a system of choice based lettings (CBL).  The key 
difference between CBL and the traditional way of 
allocating housing is that properties which become 
available for let are advertised in a variety of ways 
such as on the internet and in council offices, 
instead of being offered to the person on top of 
the waiting list.  Choice Based Letting will make 
the allocating of social housing properties simpler 
as it allows people to make a choice about where 
they want to live.   
 

35.  Tenants Services 
Authority Annual Report  

The Committee will receive a presentation 
form tenants discussing how the Council will 
comply with the TSA’s standards,   
 

Subsequent annual reports will require landlords 
to include an assessment of their performance 
against the national standards in the previous 
year, including tenant scrutiny of performance and 
the use of external validation, peer review and 
benchmarking. 
 

36.  Quarter 1 Performance 
Monitoring Report  
 

To receive Q1 Performance information for 
the Social Care Health and Housing 
Directorate. 
 

The Committee will receive a statement of the 
position Directorate’s performance for Q1.  
  

37. 13th September Quarter 1 Budget 
Monitoring Report  
 

To receive the Budget information for the 
Social Care Health and Housing Directorate. 
 

The Committee will receive  a statement of the 
position Directorate’s budget for Q1  
  

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 60



 
 

$1eam0yzj.doc - Updated 15/02/2011 11 

38.  Review of Choice Based 
Lettings and draft 
Allocations Policy 
 

Current position of the Council’s 
development of a Choice Based Lettings 
and draft Allocations Policy 

Central Beds Council is changing the way it 
allocates properties from a points based system to 
a system of choice based lettings (CBL).  The key 
difference between CBL and the traditional way of 
allocating housing is that properties which become 
available for let are advertised in a variety of ways 
such as on the internet and in council offices, 
instead of being offered to the person on top of 
the waiting list.  Choice Based Letting will make 
the allocating of social housing properties simpler 
as it allows people to make a choice about where 
they want to live.   
 

39.  Transforming People’s 
Lives – Progress Report 
 

Since the presentation to Committee on 4 
February and the Executive’s approval of 
the approach on 9 February 2010, various 
stakeholder events have been held, 
supported by leaflets & questionnaires. The 
report will provide feedback and recommend 
a strategy for implementing the 
Transformation Programme including a new 
customer pathway 
 

Transforming People’s Lives is the local approach 
to Putting People First, the national transformation 
programme for Adult Social Care. This is 
supported by the Social Care Reform Grant- 
2010/11 is the third and final year for this funding. 

40.  Transforming People’s 
Lives – Resource 
Allocation System 
 

A  Resource Allocation System is to be 
recommended to the Executive on 28 
September. Committee will be able to 
review the options which have been 
considered and the reasons for the 
recommendation. 

A Resource Allocation System is the method used 
to allocate funding from the council for a Personal 
Budget to fund an individual’s care and support 
needs. An interim mechanism is in place while a 
longer term financially sustainable system is 
developed. Extensive research has been 
undertaken on the various Resource Allocation 
Systems adopted by other councils, especially in 
the East of England. 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 61



 
 

$1eam0yzj.doc - Updated 15/02/2011 12 

41.  Updated position of the 
development of the Lets 
Rent Housing Option 
 

The Committee will receive the current 
position in the development of this housing 
option which assists the homeless to 
acquire and remain in high quality 
sustainable homes in the private sector. 
 

Update from the 5th November 2009 meeting  

42.  Report of the Task Force 
Review of the Charging 
Policy for Care Services  

 The Committee is requested to review the Task 
Force’s current position prior to the policy’s 
consideration at the Executive’s 28th September 
meeting.  
 

24. 2nd August  ® Members Site Visit to Silsoe Horticultural Unit and Biggleswade Learning Disability Day Centre 
 

25. 28th June Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) 

To review the current JSNAs Executive 
Summary  

The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment is 
designed to ensure collaborative understanding 
and joint working within and across health and 
social care, to drive the transformation of services 
to best meet the local needs of individuals and 
communities in the Central Bedfordshire region. 
 

26.  Adult Social Care 
Scoping Reviews & 
Locality Profiles  
  

Outcomes of Dr Foster Research   
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 62



 
 

$1eam0yzj.doc - Updated 15/02/2011 13 

27.  Adult Social Care 
Recovery Programme 
Update  
 

Updated position of the Adult Social Care 
Recovery Programme, with particular 
reference to the 11 areas in need of 
improvement, as it enters into phase 2 of its 
development.  

The Recovery Programme was established in 
October 2009 to take ASC to safe sustainable 
service delivery concentrating on 11 recovery 
areas in need of improvement:  

i. Safeguarding of Vulnerable Adults 
ii. Mental Health Services  
iii. Carers 
iv. Commissioning  
v. Managing the Social Care Market & Contract 

Monitoring management  
vi. Workforce Strategy  
vii. Staffing Arrangements 
viii. Partnerships 
ix. Performance Management Arrangements 
x. Budget  
xi. Financial Management   

28. 20th May 2010 ® Site Visit to Townsend Court 
 

 
 
Executive Dates: 

 
7 December 2010 
     

15 March 2011 
 

2 November 2010 
 

13 July 2010  
11 January 2011 5 April 2011  28 September  2010   31 May 

 
8 February 2011 (BUDGET)  17 August 2010     

 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 63



P
age 64

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Ce
ntr
al 
Be
dfo

rd
sh
ire
 C
ou
nc
il 

Fo
rw
ard

 Pl
an
 of
 K
ey
 D
ec
isi
on
s 

1 M
arc

h 2
01
1 t
o 2

9 F
eb
ru
ar
y 2

01
2 

  
1) 

Du
rin
g t
he
 pe

rio
d f
rom

 1 
Ma

rch
 20

11
 to

 29
 Fe

br
ua

ry 
20

12
, C
en
tra
l B
ed
for
ds
hir
e C

ou
nc
il p
lan
s t
o m

ak
e k

ey
 de

cis
ion
s o

n t
he
 is
su
es
 se

t o
ut 

be
low

.  “
Ke
y d
ec
isio

ns
” re

lat
e t
o t
ho
se
 de

cis
ion
s o
f th

e E
xe
cu
tiv
e w

hic
h a

re 
like

ly:
 

 
 

- 
to 
res

ult
 in
 th
e i
nc
urr
ing
 of
 ex

pe
nd
itu
re 
wh
ich
 is
, o
r th

e m
ak
ing
 of
 sa

vin
gs
 w
hic
h a

re,
 si
gn
ific
an
t (n

am
ely
 £2

00
,00

0 o
r a
bo
ve
 pe

r a
nn
um

) 
ha
vin
g r
eg
ard

 to
 th
e b

ud
ge
t fo

r th
e s
erv

ice
 or
 fu
nc
tio
n t
o w

hic
h t
he
 de

cis
ion
 re
lat
es
; o
r 

 
 

- 
to 
be
 si
gn
ific
an
t in

 te
rm
s o

f th
eir
 ef
fec
ts 
on
 co

mm
un
itie
s l
ivin

g o
r w

ork
ing
 in
 an

 ar
ea
 co

mp
ris
ing
 on

e o
r m

ore
 w
ard

s i
n t
he
 ar
ea
 of
 C
en
tra
l 

Be
dfo

rds
hir
e. 

 
2)  

Th
e F

orw
ard

 P
lan
 is
 a 
ge
ne
ral
 gu

ide
 to
 th
e k

ey
 de

cis
ion
s t
o b

e d
ete

rm
ine
d b

y t
he
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e a

nd
 w
ill 
be
 up

da
ted

 on
 a 
mo

nth
ly 
ba
sis
.  K

ey
 

de
cis
ion
s w

ill b
e t
ak
en
 by
 th
e E

xe
cu
tiv
e a

s a
 w
ho
le.
  T
he
 M
em

be
rs 
of 
the

 Ex
ec
uti
ve
 ar
e: 

 
 

Me
mb

er 
Po
rtfo

lio
 

 
 

 
Cll
r M

rs 
Tri
cia
 Tu

rne
r M

BE
 

Ch
air
ma

n o
f th

e E
xe
cu
tiv
e a

nd
 Le

ad
er 
of 
the

 C
ou
nc
il 

 
 

Cll
r R
ich
ard

 St
ay
 

De
pu
ty 
Le
ad
er 
of 
the

 C
ou
nc
il a
nd
 Po

rtfo
lio
 H
old
er 
for
 Po

licy
 an

d P
erf
orm

an
ce
  

 
 

Cll
r M

rs 
Rit
a D

rin
kw
ate

r 
Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 
for
 H
ou
sin
g 

 
 

Cll
r M

rs 
Ca
rol
e H

eg
ley
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 
for
 So

cia
l C
are

 an
d H

ea
lth
  

 
 

Cll
r M

au
ric
e J

on
es
  

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 
for
 Fi
na
nc
e, 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e a

nd
 Pe

op
le 

 
 

Cll
r M

rs 
An
ita
 Le

wis
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 
for
 C
hil
dre

n’s
 Se

rvi
ce
s 

 
 

Cll
r S
tev
e M

ale
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 
for
 C
us
tom

ers
, S
ys
tem

s a
nd
 As

se
ts 

 
 

Cll
r K
en
 M
att
he
ws
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 
for
 Ec

on
om

ic 
Gr
ow
th,
 Sk

ills
 an

d R
eg
en
era

tio
n 

 
 

Cll
r D
av
id 
Mc
Vic

ar 
Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 
for
 Sa

fer
 C
om

mu
nit
ies
 an

d H
ea
lth
ier
 Li
fes

tyl
es
 

 
 

Cll
r T
om

 N
ico
ls 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old
er 
for
 Su

sta
ina
ble
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t  

 
     

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 14
Page 65



3) 
Th
os
e i
tem

s i
de
nti
fie
d f
or 
de
cis
ion
 m
ore

 th
an
 on

e m
on
th 
in 
ad
va
nc
e m

ay
 ch

an
ge
 in
 fo
rth
co
mi
ng
 P
lan
s. 
 E
ac
h n

ew
 P
lan
 su

pe
rse

de
s t
he
 

pre
vio
us
 P
lan
.  A

ny
 pe

rso
n w

ho
 w
ish
es
 to
 m
ak
e r
ep
res

en
tat
ion
s t
o t
he
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e a

bo
ut 
the

 m
att
er 
in 
res

pe
ct 
of 
wh
ich
 th
e d

ec
isio

n i
s t
o b

e 
ma

de
 sh

ou
ld 
do
 so

 to
 th
e o

ffic
er 
wh
os
e t
ele
ph
on
e n

um
be
r a
nd
 e-
ma

il a
dd
res

s a
re 
sh
ow
n i
n t
he
 Fo

rw
ard

 P
lan
.  A

ny
 co

rre
sp
on
de
nc
e s

ho
uld
 

be
 se

nt 
to 
the

 co
nta

ct 
off
ice
r a
t th

e r
ele
va
nt 
ad
dre

ss
 as

 sh
ow
n b

elo
w.
  G

en
era

l q
ue
sti
on
s a

bo
ut 
the

 P
lan
 su

ch
 as

 sp
ec
ific
 da

tes
, s
ho
uld
 be

 
ad
dre

ss
ed
 to
 th
e H

ea
d o

f D
em

oc
rat
ic 
Se
rvi
ce
s, 
Pr
ior
y H

ou
se
, M

on
ks
 W
alk
, C
hic
ks
an
ds
, S
he
ffo
rd 
SG

17
 5T

Q.
 

 
4) 

Th
e a

ge
nd
as
 fo
r m

ee
tin
gs
 of
 th
e E

xe
cu
tiv
e w

ill b
e p

ub
lish

ed
 as

 fo
llo
ws
: 

 
 

Me
eti
ng
 D
ate

 
 

Pu
bli
ca
tio
n o

f A
ge
nd
a 

 

 
15
 M
arc

h 2
01
1 

03
 M
arc

h 2
01
1 

 
 

05
 Ap

ril 
20
11
 

24
 M
arc

h 2
01
1 

 
 

31
 M
ay
 20

11
 

19
 M
ay
 20

11
 

 
 

12
 Ju

ly 
20
11
 

30
 Ju
ne
 20

11
 

 
 

23
 Au

gu
st 
20
11
 

11
 Au

gu
st 
20
11
 

 
 

4 O
cto
be
r 2
01
1 

22
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
11
 

 
 

15
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
01
1 

3 N
ov
em

be
r 2
01
1 

 
 

6 D
ec
em

be
r 2
01
1 

24
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
01
1 

 
 

10
 Ja
nu
ary

 20
12
 

22
 D
ec
em

be
r 2
01
1 

 
 

14
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
12
 

2 F
eb
rua

ry 
20
12
 

 
 

27
 M
arc

h 2
01
2 

15
 M
arc

h 2
01
2 

 
 

15
 M
ay
 20

12
 

3 M
ay
 20

12
 

 
 

Agenda Item 14
Page 66



Ce
nt

ra
l B

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
 C

ou
nc

il 
 

Fo
rwa

rd 
Pla

n o
f K
ey 
De
cis
ion

s fo
r th

e p
eri
od
 1 M

arc
h 2

011
 to
 29
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
12 

 
Ke
y D

eci
sio

ns 
Da
te o

f P
ub
lica

tio
n: 
 11
.02
.11
   

 Re
f 

No
. 

Iss
ue 

for
 Ke

y 
De
cis
ion

 by
 th
e 

Ex
ecu

tive
 

Int
end

ed 
De
cis
ion

 
Ind

ica
tive

 
Me
etin

g D
ate

 
Co
nsu

ltee
s a
nd
 Da

te/M
eth

od
 

Do
cum

ent
s w

hic
h 

ma
y b

e c
on
sid

ere
d 

Po
rtfo

lio 
Ho
lde

r a
nd
 Co

nta
ct o

ffic
er 

(m
eth

od
 of
 co

mm
ent

 an
d c

los
ing

 
dat

e) 
1. 

Bu
dge

t 
Ma

nag
em

ent
 

Re
por

t - Q
uar

ter 
3 

-     

To 
con

sid
er t

he 
Qu

arte
r 

3 B
udg

et M
ana

gem
ent

 
Re

por
t. 

 

15 
Ma

rch
 20

11 
 

   
Re

por
t 

 
Cllr

 Ma
uric

e R
 Jo

nes
 

Co
mm

ent
s b

y 1
5/0

2/1
1 to

 Co
nta

ct 
Off

ice
r: 

Joh
n U

nsw
orth

, In
teri

m A
ssi

sta
nt 

Dir
ect

or o
f Fi

nan
ce 

 
Em

ail 
joh

n.u
nsw

orth
@c

ent
ralb

edf
ord

shi
re.g

o
v.u

k 
Tel

: 03
00 

300
 61

47 
 

2. 
Re

vie
w o

f 
Ce

ntra
lly 

com
mis

sio
ned

 
and

 ma
nag

ed 
Sch

ool
 Me

als
 

Co
ntra

ct -
  

   

To 
con

sid
er a

n a
nal

ysi
s 

of c
ons

ulta
tion

 
und

erta
ken

 wi
th s

cho
ols

 
 

15 
Ma

rch
 20

11 
 

   
Re

por
t 

 
Cllr

 St
eph

en 
F M

ale
 

Co
mm

ent
s b

y 1
5/0

2//1
1 to

 Co
nta

ct 
Off

ice
r: 

Ian
 Br

ow
n, I

nte
rim

 AD
 As

set
s  

Em
ail:

 
ian

.bro
wn

@c
ent

ralb
edf

ord
shi

re.g
ov.

uk 
 

Tel
: 03

00 
300

 57
11 

 

Agenda Item 14
Page 67



  Re
f 

No
. 

Iss
ue 

for
 Ke

y 
De
cis
ion

 by
 th
e 

Ex
ecu

tive
 

Int
end

ed 
De
cis
ion

 
Ind

ica
tive

 
Me
etin

g D
ate

 
Co
nsu

ltee
s a
nd
 Da

te/M
eth

od
 

Do
cum

ent
s w

hic
h 

ma
y b

e c
on
sid

ere
d 

Po
rtfo

lio 
Ho
lde

r a
nd
 Co

nta
ct o

ffic
er 

(m
eth

od
 of
 co

mm
ent

 an
d c

los
ing

 
dat

e) 
3. 

Pro
pos

als
 for

 
Se

rvic
es 

to 
Sch

ool
s - 

 
   

To 
con

sid
er r

evi
sed

 
cha

rge
s fo

r sc
hoo

l 
sup

por
t se

rvic
es.

 
 

15 
Ma

rch
 20

11 
 

   
Re

por
t 

 
Cllr

 Ma
uric

e R
 Jo

nes
,  

Cllr
 Mr

s A
nita

 M 
Lew

is 
Co

mm
ent

s b
y 1

5/0
2/1

1 to
 

Ric
har

d E
llis,

 Di
rec

tor 
of C

ust
om

er a
nd 

Sh
are

d S
erv

ice
s 

Em
ail:

 
rich

ard
.ell

is@
cen

tral
bed

ford
shi

re.g
ov.

u
k   Tel

:  0
300

 30
0 4

423
 

 
4. 

Ch
ild 

Po
ver

ty 
Str

ate
gy 

-  
   

To 
agr

ee 
the

 str
ate

gy 
wh

ich
 se

ts o
ut h

ow
 the

 
Loc

al A
uth

orit
y a

nd 
its 

par
tne

rs i
nte

nd 
to 

red
uce

 ch
ild 

pov
erty

 by
 

202
0.  

Thi
s in

clu
des

 4 
targ

ets
 (re

lati
ve 

low
 

inc
om

e, m
ate

rial
 

dep
riva

tion
, ab

sol
ute

 
pov

erty
 an

d p
ers

iste
nt 

pov
erty

).  T
his

 als
o 

inc
lud

es 
a n

eed
s 

ass
ess

me
nt t

o d
esc

ribe
 

the
 ch

ara
cte

rist
ics

 of 
chi

ld a
nd 

fam
ily 

wit
hin

 
Ce

ntra
l Be

dfo
rds

hire
 

and
 a j

oin
t ch

ild 
pov

erty
 

stra
teg

y w
hic

h w
ill 

out
line

 the
 ste

ps 
and

 
acc

oun
tab

ility
 for

 the
 

Loc
al A

uth
orit

y a
nd 

par
tne

rs. 
 

15 
Ma

rch
 20

11 
 

   
Re

por
t 

 
Cllr

 Mr
s A

nita
 M 

Lew
is 

Co
mm

ent
s b

y 0
5/0

2/1
1 to

 Co
nta

ct 
Off

ice
r: 

Ed
win

a G
ran

t, D
epu

ty C
hie

f E
xec

utiv
e 

and
 Di

rec
tor 

of C
hild

ren
's S

erv
ice

s 
Em

ail:
 

edw
ina

.gra
ntt@

cen
tral

bed
ford

shi
re.g

ov
.uk

  
Tel

: 03
00 

300
 42

29 
   

Agenda Item 14
Page 68



  Re
f 

No
. 

Iss
ue 

for
 Ke

y 
De
cis
ion

 by
 th
e 

Ex
ecu

tive
 

Int
end

ed 
De
cis
ion

 
Ind

ica
tive

 
Me
etin

g D
ate

 
Co
nsu

ltee
s a
nd
 Da

te/M
eth

od
 

Do
cum

ent
s w

hic
h 

ma
y b

e c
on
sid

ere
d 

Po
rtfo

lio 
Ho
lde

r a
nd
 Co

nta
ct o

ffic
er 

(m
eth

od
 of
 co

mm
ent

 an
d c

los
ing

 
dat

e) 
5. 

Co
mm

uni
ty S

afe
ty 

Pa
rtne

rsh
ip 

Pri
orit

ies
 an

d th
e 

Co
mm

uni
ty S

afe
ty 

Pa
rtne

rsh
ip P

lan
 

for 
201

1 - 
201

2 - 
 

   

To 
agr

ee 
and

 sig
n o

ff 
the

 Co
mm

uni
ty S

afe
ty 

Pa
rtne

rsh
ip P

rior
itie

s 
and

 the
 Co

mm
uni

ty 
Sa

fety
 Pa

rtne
rsh

ip P
lan

 
for 

201
1- 1

2 
  

15 
Ma

rch
 20

11 
 

Str
ate

gic
 As

ses
sm

ent
 & 

Pa
rtne

rsh
ip P

lan
 wi

ll b
e 

con
sid

ere
d a

t th
e C

SP
 Ex

ecu
tive

 
Me

etin
g in

 No
vem

ber
 20

10,
 

Ov
erv

iew
 an

d S
cru

tiny
 Co

mm
itte

e 
in J

anu
ary

 20
11 

and
 the

 Lo
cal

 
Str

ate
gic

 Pa
rtne

rsh
ip i

n F
ebr

uar
y 

201
1 

 

Str
ate

gic
 

Ass
ess

me
nt P

rior
itie

s 
& C

om
mu

nity
 Sa

fety
 

Pa
rtne

rsh
ip P

lan
 

201
1 - 

201
2 

 

Cllr
 Da

vid
 Mc

Vic
ar 

Co
mm

ent
s b

y 1
0/0

2/1
1 to

 Co
nta

ct 
Off

ice
r: 

Jea
net

te K
eyt

e, C
om

mu
nity

 Sa
fety

 
Ma

nag
er 

Em
ail:

 
jea

net
te.k

eyt
e@

cen
tral

bed
ford

shi
re.g

o
v.u

k   
Tel

: 03
00 

300
 52

32 
 

6. 
Du

nst
abl

e T
ow

n 
Ce

ntre
 

Ma
ste

rpla
n - 

 
   

To 
app

rov
e th

e 
Du

nst
abl

e T
ow

n C
ent

re 
Ma

ste
rpla

n a
s In

teri
m 

Tec
hni

cal
 Gu

ida
nce

 for
 

De
vel

opm
ent

 
Ma

nag
em

ent
 Pu

rpo
ses

. 
 

15 
Ma

rch
 20

11 
 

• 
No

n s
tatu

tory
 co

nsu
ltat

ion
 – 

Ap
ril 2

009
 co

mp
risi

ng 
ded

ica
ted

 we
bsi

te, 
pub

lic 
exh

ibit
ion

, st
ake

hol
der

 
wo

rks
hop

 an
d p

rint
ed 

con
sul

tati
on 

me
tho

ds.
 

• 
No

n s
tatu

tory
 co

nsu
ltat

ion
 – 

Se
pte

mb
er 2

009
 co

mp
risi

ng 
ded

ica
ted

 we
bsi

te, 
pub

lic 
exh

ibit
ion

, st
ake

hol
der

 
wo

rks
hop

 an
d p

rint
ed 

con
sul

tati
on 

me
tho

ds.
 

• 
For

ma
l 6 

we
eks

 sta
tuto

ry 
con

sul
tati

on 
– 1

8th  
Se

pte
mb

er 
- 1s

t  N
ove

mb
er 2

010
 

com
pris

ing
 de

dic
ate

d w
ebs

ite,
 

3 p
ubl

ic e
xhi

biti
ons

, pr
inte

d 
con

sul
tati

on 
me

tho
ds,

 
pre

sen
tati

ons
 to 

rele
van

t 
sta

keh
old

ers
, C

Ds
. 

  

Du
nst

abl
e T

ow
n 

Ce
ntre

 Ma
ste

rpla
n 

 
Cllr

 Ke
n C

 Ma
tthe

ws
, C

llr T
om

 Ni
col

s 
Co

mm
ent

s b
y 1

5/0
2/1

1 to
 Co

nta
ct 

Off
ice

r: 
Liz

 W
ade

, A
ssi

sta
nt D

irec
tor 

Eco
nom

ic 
Gro

wth
 an

d R
ege

ner
atio

n  
Em

ail:
 

liz.
wa

de@
cen

tral
bed

ford
shi

re.g
ov.

uk 
 

Tel
: 03

00 
300

 62
88 

   

Agenda Item 14
Page 69



  Re
f 

No
. 

Iss
ue 

for
 Ke

y 
De
cis
ion

 by
 th
e 

Ex
ecu

tive
 

Int
end

ed 
De
cis
ion

 
Ind

ica
tive

 
Me
etin

g D
ate

 
Co
nsu

ltee
s a
nd
 Da

te/M
eth

od
 

Do
cum

ent
s w

hic
h 

ma
y b

e c
on
sid

ere
d 

Po
rtfo

lio 
Ho
lde

r a
nd
 Co

nta
ct o

ffic
er 

(m
eth

od
 of
 co

mm
ent

 an
d c

los
ing

 
dat

e) 
7. 

Ch
ildr

en 
and

 
Yo

ung
 Pe

opl
e's

 
Pla

n - 
 

   

Tha
t th

e E
xec

utiv
e 

end
ors

e th
e C

ent
ral 

Be
dfo

rds
hire

 Ch
ildr

en 
and

 Yo
ung

 Pe
opl

e’s
 

Pla
n a

nd 
rec

om
me

nds
 

the
 ad

opt
ion

 of 
the

 Pla
n 

to C
oun

cil.
 

  

15 
Ma

rch
 20

11 
 

Ch
ildr

en 
and

 yo
ung

 pe
opl

e, 
par

ent
s, c

are
rs a

nd 
sta

keh
old

ers
 

tho
ugh

 a v
arie

ty o
f m

ech
ani

sm
s 

suc
h a

s w
ork

sho
ps,

 inf
orm

atio
n 

pub
lish

ed 
on 

we
bsi

te a
nd 

me
etin

gs 
wit

h k
ey 

par
tne

rs. 
  

Re
por

t 
 

Cllr
 Mr

s A
nita

 M 
Lew

is 
Co

mm
ent

s b
y 0

1/0
2/1

1 to
 Co

nta
ct 

Off
ice

r: 
Syl

via
 Gi

bso
n, I

nte
rim

 As
sis

tan
t 

Dir
ect

or, 
Lea

rnin
g a

nd 
Str

ate
gic

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

  
Em

ail:
 

syl
via

.gib
son

@c
ent

ralb
edf

ord
shi

re.g
ov.

uk 
  

Tel
: 03

00 
300

 55
98 

 
8. 

LD
F(N

orth
) S

ite 
Allo

cat
ion

s D
PD

 -  
   

To 
con

sid
er t

he 
Site

 
Allo

cat
ion

s D
PD

 
 

15 
Ma

rch
 20

11 
 

   
Re

por
t 

 
Cllr

 To
m N

ico
ls 

Co
mm

ent
s b

y 1
5.0

2.1
1 to

 Co
nta

ct 
Off

ice
r: 

Ric
har

d F
ox,

 He
ad 

of D
eve

lop
me

nt 
Pla

n 
Em

ail:
 

rich
ard

.fox
@c

ent
ralb

edf
ord

shi
re.g

ov.
uk 

 
Tel

: 03
00 

300
 41

05 
   

Agenda Item 14
Page 70



  Re
f 

No
. 

Iss
ue 

for
 Ke

y 
De
cis
ion

 by
 th
e 

Ex
ecu

tive
 

Int
end

ed 
De
cis
ion

 
Ind

ica
tive

 
Me
etin

g D
ate

 
Co
nsu

ltee
s a
nd
 Da

te/M
eth

od
 

Do
cum

ent
s w

hic
h 

ma
y b

e c
on
sid

ere
d 

Po
rtfo

lio 
Ho
lde

r a
nd
 Co

nta
ct o

ffic
er 

(m
eth

od
 of
 co

mm
ent

 an
d c

los
ing

 
dat

e) 
9. 

Foo
d L

aw
 

En
forc

em
ent

 
Se

rvic
e P

lan
 

201
1-2

012
, A

ge 
Re

stri
cte

d S
ale

s 
Pla

n 2
011

-20
12 

and
 the

 He
alth

 
and

 Sa
fety

 (as
 a 

Re
gul

ato
r) 

Se
rvic

e P
lan

 
201

1-2
012

 -  
 

To 
app

rov
e th

e F
ood

 
Law

 En
forc

em
ent

 
Se

rvic
e P

lan
 20

11-
201

2, 
the

 Ag
e R

est
rict

ed 
Sa

les
 

Pla
n 2

011
-20

12 
and

 the
 

He
alth

 an
d S

afe
ty (

as 
a 

Re
gul

ato
r) S

erv
ice

 Pla
n 

201
1-2

012
 

  

15 
Ma

rch
 20

11 
 

   
Ce

ntra
l Be

dfo
rds

hire
 

En
forc

em
ent

 Po
licy

; 
FS

A F
ram

ew
ork

 
Ag

ree
me

nt o
n L

oca
l 

Au
tho

rity
 Fo

od 
Law

 
En

forc
em

ent
; Fo

od 
Law

 Co
de 

of P
rac

tice
 

(En
gla

nd)
; H

SE
 

Se
ctio

n 1
8 S

tan
dar

d 
on 

En
forc

em
ent

 
 

Cllr
 Da

vid
 Mc

Vic
ar 

Co
mm

ent
s b

y 1
5/0

2/1
1 to

 Co
nta

ct 
Off

ice
r: 

Su
san

 Ch
ilde

rho
use

, H
ead

 of 
Pu

blic
 

Pro
tec

tion
 (N

orth
)  

Em
ail:

 
sus

an.
chi

lde
rho

use
@c

ent
ralb

edo
rds

hir
e.g

ov.
uk 

Tel
: 03

00 
300

 43
94 

  
10.
 

Ele
ctri

city
 an

d 
Ga

s S
upp

ly 
Co

ntra
cts

 -  
   

To 
app

rov
e th

e u
se 

of 
Ce

ntra
l Bu

yin
g 

Co
nso

rtiu
m’s

 ret
end

ere
d 

“Fle
xib

le F
ram

ew
ork

” to
 

ren
ew

 the
 Co

unc
il’s 

ma
in e

ner
gy 

con
trac

ts 
for 

the
 su

ppl
y p

erio
d 

Oc
tob

er 2
012

 to 
Se

pte
mb

er 2
016

. 
 

15 
Ma

rch
 20

11 
 

   
Re

por
t 

 
Cllr

 Ma
uric

e R
 Jo

nes
 

Co
mm

ent
s b

y 1
5/0

2/1
1 to

 Co
nta

ct 
Off

ice
r: 

Ro
ber

t G
reg

an,
 He

ad 
of P

roc
ure

me
nt 

Em
ail:

 
rob

ert.
gre

gan
@c

ent
ralb

edf
ord

shi
re.g

ov
.uk

   
Tel

: 03
00 

300
 66

26 
  

11.
 

Ou
tco

me
s o

f th
e 

Re
vie

w o
f 

Tra
nsf

orm
ing

 
Tea

chi
ng 

and
 

Lea
rnin

g in
 

Du
nst

abl
e a

nd 
Ho

ugh
ton

 Re
gis

 -  
   

To 
con

sid
er t

he 
out

com
e 

of t
he 

rev
iew

 of 
Tra

nsf
orm

ing
 Te

ach
ing

 
and

 Le
arn

ing
 in 

Du
nst

abl
e a

nd 
Ho

ugh
ton

 
Re

gis
. 

 

5 A
pril

 20
11 

 
   

Re
por

t 
 

Cllr
 Mr

s A
nita

 M 
Lew

is 
Co

mm
ent

s b
y 0

5/0
3/1

1 to
 Co

nta
ct 

Off
ice

r: 
Dir

ect
or o

f C
hild

ren
's S

erv
ice

s  
Em

ails
:  

edw
ina

.gra
nt@

cen
tral

bed
ford

shi
re.g

ov.
uk 

  
Tel

:  0
300

 30
0 4

229
 

   

Agenda Item 14
Page 71



  Re
f 

No
. 

Iss
ue 

for
 Ke

y 
De
cis
ion

 by
 th
e 

Ex
ecu

tive
 

Int
end

ed 
De
cis
ion

 
Ind

ica
tive

 
Me
etin

g D
ate

 
Co
nsu

ltee
s a
nd
 Da

te/M
eth

od
 

Do
cum

ent
s w

hic
h 

ma
y b

e c
on
sid

ere
d 

Po
rtfo

lio 
Ho
lde

r a
nd
 Co

nta
ct o

ffic
er 

(m
eth

od
 of
 co

mm
ent

 an
d c

los
ing

 
dat

e) 
12.
 

Aw
ard

 of 
the

 24
/7 

Co
mm

uni
ty A

larm
 

and
 Em

erg
enc

y 
out

 of 
hou

rs 
tele

pho
ne 

cal
l 

han
dlin

g s
erv

ice
 -  

   

To 
aw

ard
 the

 pre
ferr

ed 
con

tac
tor.

 
 

31 
Ma

y 2
011

 
 

   
Ten

der
 rep

ort 
 

Cllr
 Mr

s R
ita 

J D
rink

wa
ter 

Co
mm

ent
s b

y 3
0/0

4/1
1 to

 Co
nta

ct 
Off

ice
r: 

Ba
sil 

Qu
inn

, H
ous

ing
 As

set
 Ma

nag
er 

Pe
rfor

ma
nce

  
Em

ail:
 

bas
il.q

uin
n@

cen
tral

bed
ord

shi
re.g

ov.
uk 

 
Tel

: 03
00 

300
 51

18 
 

13.
 

Tra
nsf

orm
ing

 
lea

rnin
g a

nd 
our

 
rela

tion
shi

p w
ith 

sch
ool

s - 
Re

vie
w 

of s
cho

ol p
lac

es 
in D

uns
tab

le a
nd 

Ho
ugh

ton
 Re

gis
 -  

   

To 
con

sid
er 

rec
om

me
nda

tion
s to

 
com

me
nce

 inf
orm

al (
pre

 
sta

tuto
ry) 

pub
lic 

con
sul

tati
on 

for 
a 1

2 
we

ek 
per

iod
 on

 a s
hor

t 
list

 of 
pre

ferr
ed 

opt
ion

(s).
 

  

31 
Ma

y 2
011

 
 

   
Ed

uca
tion

 Vis
ion

, 
Ch

ildr
en 

and
 Yo

ung
 

Pe
opl

e's
 Pla

n, 
Lea

rnin
g 

Tra
nsf

orm
atio

n 
Du

nst
abl

e a
nd 

Ho
ugh

ton
 Re

gis
 

Re
vie

w P
roto

col
 

 

Cllr
 Mr

s A
nita

 M 
Lew

is 
Co

mm
ent

s b
y 3

0/0
4/1

1 to
 Co

nta
ct 

Off
ice

r: 
Syl

via
 Gi

bso
n, I

nte
rim

 As
sis

tan
t 

Dir
ect

or, 
Lea

rnin
g a

nd 
Str

ate
gic

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

  
Em

ail:
 

syl
via

.gib
son

@c
ent

ralb
edf

ord
shi

re.g
ov.

uk 
  

Tel
: 03

00 
300

 55
98 

 
14.
 

The
 Fu

ture
 of 

Sp
eci

al S
cho

olin
g 

in t
he 

So
uth

 of 
Ce

ntra
l 

Be
dfo

rds
hire

 an
d 

the
 Pr

opo
sal

 to 
Dis

con
tinu

e th
e 

Dy
sle

xia
 Pr

ovi
sio

n 
at P

rior
y M

idd
le 

Sch
ool

 -  
 

To 
rep

ort 
bac

k o
n th

e 
info

rma
l co

nsu
ltat

ion
 for

 
the

 fut
ure

 of 
Sp

eci
al 

Sch
ool

ing
 in 

the
 So

uth
 

of C
ent

ral 
Be

dfo
rds

hire
 

and
 the

 pro
pos

al t
o 

dis
con

tinu
e th

e d
ysl

exi
a 

pro
vis

ion
 at 

Pri
ory

 
Mid

dle
 Sc

hoo
l. 

 

31 
Ma

y 2
011

 
 

   
No

ne.
 

 
Cllr

 Mr
s A

nita
 M 

Lew
is 

Co
mm

ent
s b

y 2
9/0

4/1
1 to

 Co
nta

ct 
Off

ice
r: 

Ma
rk W

hee
ler,

 Int
erim

 As
sis

tan
t 

Dir
ect

or C
hild

ren
's S

erv
ice

s 
Em

ail:
  

ma
rk.w

hee
ler@

cen
tral

bed
ford

shi
re.g

ov
.uk

   
Tel

:  0
300

 30
0 6

044
 

 

Agenda Item 14
Page 72



  Re
f 

No
. 

Iss
ue 

for
 Ke

y 
De
cis
ion

 by
 th
e 

Ex
ecu

tive
 

Int
end

ed 
De
cis
ion

 
Ind

ica
tive

 
Me
etin

g D
ate

 
Co
nsu

ltee
s a
nd
 Da

te/M
eth

od
 

Do
cum

ent
s w

hic
h 

ma
y b

e c
on
sid

ere
d 

Po
rtfo

lio 
Ho
lde

r a
nd
 Co

nta
ct o

ffic
er 

(m
eth

od
 of
 co

mm
ent

 an
d c

los
ing

 
dat

e) 
15.
 

Loc
al E

con
om

ic 
Pla

n - 
 

   

To 
app

rov
e th

e C
ent

ral 
Be

dfo
rds

hire
 Lo

cal
 

Eco
nom

ic P
lan

.  
 

12 
Jul

y 2
011

 
 

   
Dra

ft fi
nal

 Lo
cal

 
Eco

nom
ic P

lan
 

 
Cllr

 Ke
n C

 Ma
tthe

ws
 

Co
mm

ent
s b

y 1
1/0

6/1
1 to

 Co
nta

ct 
Off

ice
r: 

Jam
es 

Cu
shi

ng,
 He

ad 
of E

con
om

ic 
Po

licy
  

Em
ail 

jam
es.

cus
hin

g@
cen

tral
bed

ford
shi

re.g
o

v.u
k   

 
Tel

: 03
00 

300
 49

84 
 

16.
 

Big
gle

sw
ade

 
Tow

n C
ent

re 
Str

ate
gy 

and
 

Ma
ste

rpla
n - 

 
   

To 
con

sid
er a

nd 
form

ally
 

ado
pt t

he 
Big

gle
sw

ade
 

tow
n c

ent
re s

trat
egy

 an
d 

ma
ste

rpla
n a

s a
 

sup
ple

me
nta

ry p
lan

nin
g 

doc
um

ent
. 

 

12 
Jul

y 2
011

 
 

No
n s

tatu
tory

 co
nsu

ltat
ion

 – J
uly

 
200

9 c
om

pris
ing

 pu
blic

 ex
hib

itio
n 

No
n s

tatu
tory

 co
nsu

ltat
ion

 – 3
 Ju

ly 
to 2

7 A
ugu

st 2
010

, 4 
pub

lic 
exh

ibit
ion

s in
 ad

diti
on 

to w
eb 

and
 

prin
t co

nsu
ltat

ion
 me

tho
ds 

For
ma

l st
atu

tory
 co

nsu
ltat

ion
 – 

Ea
rly 

No
vem

ber
 20

10 
for 

a p
erio

d 
of f

our
 to 

six
 we

eks
  

  

Big
gle

sw
ade

 tow
n 

cen
tre 

stra
teg

y a
nd 

ma
ste

rpla
n 

 

Cllr
 Ke

n C
 Ma

tthe
ws

, C
llr T

om
 Ni

col
s 

Co
mm

ent
s b

y 1
2/0

6/1
1 to

 Co
nta

ct 
Off

ice
r: 

Liz
 W

ade
, A

ssi
sta

nt D
irec

tor 
Eco

nom
ic 

Gro
wth

 an
d R

ege
ner

atio
n 

Em
ail:

 
liz.

wa
de@

cen
tral

bed
ford

shi
re.g

ov.
uk 

 
Tel

: 03
00 

300
 62

88 
   

17.
 

Tra
nsf

orm
ing

 
lea

rnin
g a

nd 
our

 
rela

tion
shi

p w
ith 

sch
ool

s - 
Re

vie
w 

of s
cho

ol p
lac

es 
in L

eig
hto

n &
 

Lin
sla

de 
-  

   

To 
con

sid
er t

he 
res

pon
ses

 to 
the

 
con

sul
tati

on 
on 

the
 

pre
ferr

ed 
opt

ion
(s) 

and
 

to a
uth

oris
e th

e 
pub

lica
tion

 of 
sta

tuto
ry 

not
ice

s. 
 

4 O
cto

ber
 

201
1 

 
   

Ed
uca

tion
 Vis

ion
, 

Ch
ildr

en 
and

 Yo
ung

 
Pe

opl
e's

 Pla
n, 

Lea
rnin

g 
Tra

nsf
orm

atio
n 

Du
nst

abl
e a

nd 
Ho

ugh
ton

 Re
gis

 
Re

vie
w P

roto
col

 
 

Cllr
 Mr

s A
nita

 M 
Lew

is 
Co

mm
ent

s b
y 0

4/0
9/1

1 to
 Co

nta
ct 

Off
ice

r: 
Syl

via
 Gi

bso
n, I

nte
rim

 As
sis

tan
t 

Dir
ect

or, 
Lea

rnin
g a

nd 
Str

ate
gic

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

  
Em

ail:
 

syl
via

.gib
son

@c
ent

ralb
edf

ord
shi

re.g
ov.

uk 
  

Tel
: 03

00 
300

 55
98 

 

Agenda Item 14
Page 73



  Re
f 

No
. 

Iss
ue 

for
 Ke

y 
De
cis
ion

 by
 th
e 

Ex
ecu

tive
 

Int
end

ed 
De
cis
ion

 
Ind

ica
tive

 
Me
etin

g D
ate

 
Co
nsu

ltee
s a
nd
 Da

te/M
eth

od
 

Do
cum

ent
s w

hic
h 

ma
y b

e c
on
sid

ere
d 

Po
rtfo

lio 
Ho
lde

r a
nd
 Co

nta
ct o

ffic
er 

(m
eth

od
 of
 co

mm
ent

 an
d c

los
ing

 
dat

e) 
18.
 

Tra
nsf

orm
ing

 
lea

rnin
g a

nd 
our

 
rela

tion
shi

p w
ith 

sch
ool

s - 
Re

vie
w 

of s
cho

ol p
lac

es 
in L

eig
hto

n &
 

Lin
sla

de 
-  

   

To 
app

rov
e th

e s
tatu

tory
 

pro
pos

als
 an

d fi
nan

cia
l 

com
mit

me
nt t

o 
imp

lem
ent

 the
 ch

ose
n 

opt
ion

. 
 

15 
No

vem
ber

 
201

1 
 

   
Ed

uca
tion

 Vis
ion

, 
Ch

ildr
en 

and
 Yo

ung
 

Pe
opl

e's
 Pla

n, 
Lea

rnin
g 

Tra
nsf

orm
atio

n 
Du

nst
abl

e a
nd 

Ho
ugh

ton
 Re

gis
 

Re
vie

w P
roto

col
 

 

Cllr
 Mr

s A
nita

 M 
Lew

is 
Co

mm
ent

s b
y 1

5/1
0/1

1to
 Co

nta
ct 

Off
ice

r: 
Syl

via
 Gi

bso
n, I

nte
rim

 As
sis

tan
t 

Dir
ect

or, 
Lea

rnin
g a

nd 
Str

ate
gic

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

  
Em

ail:
 

syl
via

.gib
son

@c
ent

ralb
edf

ord
shi

re.g
ov.

uk 
  

Tel
: 03

00 
300

 55
98 

 
 NO

N 
KE

Y D
EC

ISI
ON

S 
 19.
 

Qu
arte

r 3 
Pe

rfor
ma

nce
 

Re
por

t -  
   

To 
hig

hlig
ht t

he 
key

 
Qu

arte
r 3 

per
form

anc
e 

for 
Ce

ntra
l Be

dfo
rds

hire
 

Co
unc

il.  
 

5 A
pril

 20
11 

 
   

Re
por

t 
 

Cllr
 Ri

cha
rd S

tay
 

Co
mm

ent
s b

y 0
5/0

3/1
1 to

 Co
nta

ct 
Off

ice
r: 

Ian
 Po

rter
, A

ssi
sta

nt D
irec

tor 
Po

licy
, 

Pa
rtne

rsh
ips

 & 
Pe

rfor
ma

nce
  

Em
ail:

 
ian

.po
rter

@c
ent

ralb
edf

ord
shi

re.g
ov.

uk 
 

Tel
: 03

00 
300

 65
29 

 
20.
 

Qu
arte

r 4 
Pe

rfor
ma

nce
 

Re
por

t -  
   

To 
hig

hlig
ht k

ey 
Qu

arte
r 

4 p
erfo

rma
nce

 for
 

Ce
ntra

l Be
dfo

rds
hire

 
Co

unc
il. 

 

31 
Ma

y 2
011

 
 

   
Re

por
t 

 
Cllr

 Ri
cha

rd S
tay

 
Co

mm
ent

s b
y 0

1/0
5/1

1to
 Co

nta
ct 

Off
ice

r: 
Ian

 Po
rter

, A
ssi

sta
nt D

irec
tor 

Po
licy

, 
Pa

rtne
rsh

ips
 & 

Pe
rfor

ma
nce

  
Em

ail:
 

ian
.po

rter
@c

ent
ralb

edf
ord

shi
re.g

ov.
uk 

 
Tel

: 03
00 

300
 65

29 
 Po
sta

l ad
dre

ss 
for
 Co

nta
ct O

ffic
ers

:  
Ce
ntr
al B

edf
ord

shi
re 
Co
un
cil,
 Pr
ior
y H

ou
se,
 Mo

nks
 W
alk
, C
hic

ksa
nd
s, S

hef
for
d  S

G1
7 5
TQ

  
 

 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 14
Page 74



 

Central Bedfordshire Council  
Forward Plan of Decisions on Key Issues 

 
For the Municipal Year 2010/11 the Forward Plan will be published on the fifteenth day of each 
month or, where the fifteenth day is not a working day, the working day immediately proceeding 
the fifteenth day, or in February 2011 when the plan will be published on the fourteenth day: 
 

 Date of Publication Period of Plan 
 

 14.05.10 1 June 2010 – 31 May 2011 
 

 15.06.10 1 July 2010 – 30 June 2011 
 

 15.07.10 1  August 2010 – 31 July 2011  
 

 13.08.10 1 September 2010 – 31 August 2011 
 

 15.09.10 1 October 2010 – 30 September 2011 
 

 15.10.10 1 November  2010 –  31 October 2011 
 

 15.11.10 1 December 2010 – 30 November 2011 
 

 15.12.10 1 January 2011 – 31 December 2011 
 

 14.01.11 1 February 2011 – 31 January 2012 
 

 14.02.11 1 March 2011 – 29 February 2012 
 

 15.03.11 1 April 2011 – 31 March 2012 
 

 15.04.11 1 May 2011 – 30 April 2012 
  

 

Agenda Item 14
Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 14
Page 76


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	12 Continuing Health Care
	item 12 dh_106229

	13 Update on the Revised Fair Access to Care Services Eligibility Criteria for Adult Social Care
	item 13 Eligibility Criteria Appendix A

	14 Work Programme 2010 - 2011 & Executive Forward Plan
	item 14 Work Porgamme v46 MASTER 2010-2011
	Executive Forward Plan


